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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY OWNERS

HK$ Million
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[ Profit from the sale of Chong Hing Bank Centre
FINANCIAL SUMMARY
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Miltion HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
Advances to customers 45,120 56,925 63,600 70,689 86,698 101,825 118,079
Total customers deposits 71,165 82,133 99,392 102,881 118,759 143,690 162,665
Total assets 85,188 108,046 127,838 137,772 163,747 190,576 212,768
Total liabilities 77,456 97,262 112,730 121,858 146,313 168,033 187,905
Total equity 7,732 10,784 15,108 15,914 17,434 22,542 24,863
Profit attributable to equity

owners (Note) 557 2,742 1,193 1,420 1,565 1,760 1,901

Note: In 2014, profit attributable to equity owners amounted to HK$2,742 million and after excluding the profit from the sale of Chong Hing Bank Centre,
amounted to HK$793 million.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

as of 27 February 2020

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr ZONG Jianxin (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr LAU Wai Man (Deputy Chief Executive)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing (Chairman)
Mr LI Feng

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBs, JP
Ms CHEN Jing

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew
Mr LEE Ka Lun

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph

BOARD COMMITTEES
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo (Chairman)
Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBs, JP
Ms CHEN Jing
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Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS COMMITTEE

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew (Chairman)

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBs, JP

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr CHAN Kam Ki Vincent (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr WOO Pak Kin Clement (Chief Risk Officer)

Chong Hing Bank Limited

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph (Chairman)
Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew
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Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph (Chairman)
Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBs, JP
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Mr LEE Ka Lun
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Mr LEE Ka Lun (Chairman)
Mr LI Feng

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph
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Mr TANG Xianging (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr CHIU Tak Wah Edward (Chief Operating Officer and
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Mr CHAN Kam Ki Vincent (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr WOO Pak Kin Clement (Chief Risk Officer)
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Ms CHAN Yun Ling (Head of Financial Markets Division)

Mr SIN Tat Wo (Head of Mainland Corporates Division and
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Ms LAM Pik Ha Eliza (Head of Financial Institutions
Division)

Mr YIP Kui Yin Frederick (Chief Credit Officer)

Mr WONG Kwok Leung Arthur (Chief Information Officer)

Ms CHAN 0i Hung Blanche (Head of Human Resources
Division)

Ms LAl Wing Nga (Company Secretary)



CORPORATE INFORMATION

as of 27 February 2020

REGISTERED OFFICE
EwiHE

Address . Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre .

24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong I
Telephone : (852) 3768 1111 I-'-

Facsimile  : (852) 3768 1888 -
SWIFTBIC : LCHB HK HH E

Website © www.chbank.com Chong Hing Bank's website access code

E-mail . info@chbank.com

PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISERS

Deacons

Kwan & Chow
Mayer Brown JSM
Robertsons

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditors

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

STOCK CODES AND SHORT NAMES

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited's Stock Codes and Short Names in respect of the Bank's (1) shares, (2)
subordinated notes due 2020, (3) tier 2 subordinated notes due 2027 and (4) US$400,000,000 5.70 per cent. undated
non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities are (1) 01111 (CHONG HING BANK), (2) 04327 (CH BANK
N2011), (3) 05249 (CH BANK N2707) and (4) 04419 (CH BANK NCSCS) respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

as of 27 February 2020

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A ‘:ﬁ £ JiL 85 ﬁ  Chong Hing Bank
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Front (from left to right): CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred, LAU Wai Man, ZHANG Zhaoxing, ZONG Jianxin, YU Lup Fat Joseph
Back (from left to right): CHEN Jing, MA Chiu Cheung Andrew, LI Feng, CHENG Yuk Wo, LEE Ka Lun

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr ZONG Jianxin

aged 53, was appointed Deputy Managing Director and Head of Mainland Business Division of the Bank in May 2015 and
ceased to act as Deputy Managing Director in May 2018. Mr Zong has been appointed an Executive Director, the Chief
Executive and the Deputy Chairman of the Bank since September 2015, April 2017 and May 2018, respectively. He also
acted as Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank from May 2016 to April 2017. Mr Zong has been appointed an Executive
Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank) (“Yuexiu Financial Holdings")
since November 2015 and the Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive of Yuexiu Financial Holdings since May 2018. He
acted as Alternate Chief Executive of Yuexiu Financial Holdings from June 2016 to May 2018. He has been a Director and
the Chief Executive of Chong Hing Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, since August 2017. Mr Zong
has more than 20 years of banking experience, specialising in corporate banking, international business and investment
banking business. He was an Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited ("ICBC Asia") from October 2010 to May 2015, and was also a Director of various subsidiaries of ICBC Asia
from December 2010 to May 2015. Mr Zong held various positions in Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited,
Shenzhen Branch from October 1999 to December 2009, with his last position as the Vice President. Mr Zong holds a
Master Degree in Business Administration awarded by Shanghai Jiao Tong University.

Chong Hing Bank Limited



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

as of 27 February 2020

Mr LAU Wai Man

aged 61, has been appointed an Executive Director of the Bank since August 2001 and was appointed as Deputy Managing
Director in May 2016, and such title was changed to Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank in May 2018. Mr Lau also acts
as Alternate Chief Executive of the Bank and Chong Hing Finance Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank).
He has been an Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate
holding company of the Bank) since February 2014 and appointed as Deputy Chief Executive since May 2018. Mr Lau
is also a Director of various subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr Lau holds a Bachelor of Law degree and a Master of Business
Administration degree. He is a Vice President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Certified Financial
Planner™ and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a senior associate of the Australian Institute of Bankers. Mr Lau joined the Bank as
the Chief Auditor in 1988, and was Deputy Chief Executive Officer from July 2007 to March 2013 and Chief Executive Officer
from March 2013 to May 2016. Before joining the Bank, he had worked for an international bank and a global accounting
firm.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing

aged 56, has been appointed the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of the Bank since February 2014. Mr Zhang is
the Chairman of EMMFEE D AR AT (formerly known as EMiBFEEGBR A F]) (Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings
Limited*) and Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited (“YX Enterprises”). Mr Zhang holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree awarded by Huazhong University of Science and Technology and possesses the qualification
of senior accountant in China. He has extensive experience in the financial management, industrial operation, capital
operation and corporate culture development of large enterprises. Prior to joining YX Enterprises in 2008, Mr Zhang
was the Director and General Manager of Guangzhou Radio Group Co., Ltd., Chairman and General Manager of Haihua
Electronics Enterprise (China) Corporation, Chairman of Guangzhou Guangdian Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. and a
Director of GRG Banking Equipment Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002152), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
He was also an Executive Director, the Vice Chairman and the Chairman (appointed since July 2013) of Yuexiu Property
Company Limited (Stock Code: 00123) from July 2008 to August 2018, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
General Manager from July 2008 to March 2014. Mr Zhang is a deputy to the 12th National People’'s Congress of the
People's Republic of China.

Mr LI Feng

aged 51, has been a Non-executive Director of the Bank since February 2014. Mr Li is the Chief Capital Officer of BT
EERMHER AT (formerly known as E/MNEFHEEFRAR]) (Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited* ("GZYX Holdings"))
and Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited ("YX Enterprises"”), managing the Capital Department, Customer Resource
Management and Synergy Department and Information Centre of GZYX Holdings and YX Enterprises. Mr Li is mainly
responsible for formulating and implementing major capital management plans, organizing and coordinating the investor
relationship of listed companies, optimizing and synergizing the customer resources, and enhancing the development of
information technology system, etc. Mr Li is also the Chairman and a Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings
Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank) and a Director of Guangzhou City Construction & Development Co.,
Ltd. He is an Executive Director of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (listed on Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 00123) and
the Chairman and Executive Director of Yuexiu Transport Infrastructure Limited (Stock Code: 01052), both of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange; a Non-executive Director of Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited (the Manager of Yuexiu
Real Estate Investment Trust (Stock Code: 00405), which is listed on the Stock Exchange); and a Director of Guangzhou
Yuexiu Financial Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (BN 85 E BiE & E (B PR A7), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 000987). Mr Li graduated from the Faculty of Naval Architecture and Ocean Engineering of South

2019 Annual Report




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

as of 27 February 2020

China University of Technology majoring in Naval Architecture, and obtained a Master of Business Administration degree
from Jinan University. He holds the qualification of a Senior Engineer in China and the certificate in Major Administrative
Decision-Making and Argumentation (/N EARITEBURK #MEEZ) conferred by the Guangzhou Municipal Government.
Mr Li is also the President of the Association of Guangzhou Belt and Road Investment Enterprises, the Secretary-general
of the Council for the Promotion of Guangzhou-Hong Kong-Macao Cooperation, a Director of the Guangzhou People’s
Association for Friendship with Foreign Countries and the Vice-president of the Listed Companies Council, Hong Kong
Chinese Enterprises Association. Mr Li joined YX Enterprises in December 2001 and has successively held positions
in GZYX Holdings and YX Enterprises, including the Assistant to General Manager, Assistant Manager of Corporate
Management Department, Assistant to General Manager of Supervision and Auditing Department, Deputy General Manager
of Capital Department, and Deputy General Manager of Yue Xiu International Development Limited. Mr Li is familiar with
business of listed companies and the operations of capital markets. Since 2008, he has participated in all of the major
capital operation projects of GZYX Holdings and YX Enterprises; before that, he was also involved in the successful listing
of Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust, and has extensive practical experience in capital operations.

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBS, JP

aged 69, has been a Board member of the Bank since February 2003, and was re-designated from Independent Non-
executive Director to Non-executive Director of the Bank in September 2004. Mr Chow has been a Non-executive Director
of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank) since February 2014. He is also the
Chairman and a Non-executive Director of Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Master of Social Sciences
(Public Administration) degree. With 17 years’ working experience in the civil service and over 30 years as a solicitor, Mr
Chow is presently the senior partner of Kwan & Chow, Solicitors in Hong Kong. He is also a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer. Mr Chow is a director and legal advisor of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited and Federation
of HK Chiu Chow Community Organizations Limited; and legal advisor to Jao Tsung-I Petite Ecole Fan Club and various
community bodies. He was the Chairman of the HKSAR Passports Appeal Board and Chief Adjudicator of the Registration
of Persons Tribunal, and currently serves on other statutory boards.

Ms CHEN Jing

aged 48, has been a Non-executive Director of the Bank since August 2018. Ms Chen is the Chief Financial Officer and
General Manager of the Finance Department of BN #MFEEERMDBR A F] (formerly known as EMEFEEBRAF)
(Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited* ("GZYX Holdings")) and Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited ("YX Enterprises”). Ms
Chen is an Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (listed on Stock Exchange,
Stock Code: 00123), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and an Executive Director of Yuexiu Transport Infrastructure
Limited (Stock Code: 01052), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. She is also a Non-executive Director of Yuexiu
Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank).

Ms Chen graduated from the Xi'an Jiaotong University with a major in auditing, and holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the School of Management and Economics of the Beijing Institute of Technology and the
qualifications of auditor and certified internal auditor. Ms Chen joined GZYX Holdings in July 2004 and was the Deputy
General Manager of the Supervisory (Audit) Office and the General Manager of the Audit Department. Ms Chen has
participated in building systems to monitor the major risks and finance of GZYX Holdings. Ms Chen is well versed in risk
management and internal control management, financial management of listed companies and has extensive experience
in establishing a sound system for risk management and internal control, financial management for enterprises. Prior
to joining GZYX Holdings, Ms Chen worked in the School of Business of Hubei University and Hisense Kelon Electrical
Holdings Company Limited.

Chong Hing Bank Limited



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

as of 27 February 2020

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

aged 59, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since September 2004. He has also been an
Independent Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the
Bank) since February 2014. He has been an Independent Non-executive Director of Chong Hing Insurance Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, since May 2017. Mr Cheng, a co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant
banking firm, is currently the proprietor of a certified public accountant practice in Hong Kong. Mr Cheng obtained a
Master of Science (Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance from the London School of Economics, England and
a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from the University of Kent, England. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr Cheng has more than 30 years of expertise in financial and corporate
advisory services in mergers, acquisitions and investments. He had worked at Coopers and Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers) in London and Swiss Bank Corporation (now known as UBS AG) in Toronto, and held senior
management positions in a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

In addition to his directorship in the Bank, Mr Cheng is also an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including CSI Properties Limited (Stock Code: 00497), HKC (Holdings) Limited
(Stock Code: 00190), Goldbond Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00172), CPMC Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00906),
Top Spring International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03688), Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited (Stock Code: 00194),
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (Stock Code: 03839), DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited
(formerly known as UDL Holdings Limited) (Stock Code: 00620), Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01827),
Somerley Capital Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 08439), Kidsland International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02122) and
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043). Besides, Mr Cheng was an Independent Non-executive Director of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (previous stock code: 00121) from September 2004 to October 2019, and the withdrawal of listing of its shares
on the Stock Exchange became effective from 28 October 2019.

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew

aged 78, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since August 2007. Mr Ma has also been an
Independent Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank)
since February 2014. He has been an Independent Non-executive Director of Chong Hing Insurance Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, since January 2018. Mr Ma is a founder and former director of AMA CPA Limited
(formerly known as Andrew Ma DFK (CPA) Limited). He is presently a Director of Mayee Management Limited and also
a Director of several other private companies. Mr Ma has more than 40 years' experience in the fields of accounting,
auditing and finance. He received his Bachelor's degree in Economics from The London School of Economics and Political
Science (University of London) in England. Mr Ma is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and The Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong.

In addition to his directorship in the Bank, Mr Ma is also an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange, including China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 00836), C.P.
Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043), Asiaray Media Group Limited (Stock Code: 01993), C-MER Eye Care Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 03309) and S.A.l. Leisure Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 01832). In addition, he was an
Independent Non-executive Director of Asia Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00662), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from September 2004 to May 2019.

2019 Annual Report
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as of 27 February 2020

Mr LEE Ka Lun

aged 64, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since February 2014. Mr Lee has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank)
since November 2013. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (Stock Code:
00123), Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 00116), Medicskin Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
08307), Ever Harvest Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 01549) and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02360),
all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He was an Independent Non-executive Director of REXLot Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 00555), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from April 2007 to June 2018. Mr Lee is an accountant
by profession and is a Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the UK. He has over 20 years of
experience in banking and auditing.

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph

aged 72, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Bank since August 2015. Mr Yu has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank) since August
2015. He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (Stock Code: 00123), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr Yu holds a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University in
Australia, a Diploma of Management Studies from The University of Hong Kong and a Diploma from the Association of
International Bond Dealers. Mr Yu was the Founding President of the Hong Kong Forex Club from 1974 to 1975. Mr Yu was
also the Founding Deputy Chairman of the Hong Kong Capital Markets Association and Asia Chairman of the Association
of International Bond Dealers. Mr Yu has held numerous senior managerial and advisory positions and has more than 40
years of experience in investment, banking and finance.

* for identification purpose only

Note: The directorships held by the Directors in the subsidiaries of the Bank (where applicable) are set out in the “List of names of the directors of Chong Hing Bank Limited

and its subsidiaries” posted on the Bank's website (www.chbank.com/en/personal/footer/about-ch-bank/investor-relations/directors-list/index.shtml).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr TANG Xianqing

aged 55, has been the Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank since November 2019. Mr Tang graduated from the Hunan
University of Science and Engineering and obtained a Master Degree in Economics (with research focus on International
Finance) from Sichuan University. Mr Tang has 21 years of experience in business operations and management of
Mainland commercial banks. He held senior positions in the head office and branches of three Mainland banks and
possesses extensive experience in business operations, marketing, risk control, strategic planning and other aspects of
the banking sector in Mainland China. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr Tang was a senior executive of a Hong Kong subsidiary
of a state-owned enterprise, which is listed among Fortune Global 500 Enterprises.

Mr CHIU Tak Wah Edward

aged 57, Executive Vice President, has been the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank since May 2017 and Alternate Chief
Executive of the Bank, Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited (the immediate holding company of the Bank) and Chong
Hing Finance Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank) since December 2019. He is also a Director of various
subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr Chiu holds a Bachelor of Science degree at the King's College London, University of London
and a Master of Science degree at The London School of Economics and Political Science, University of London. Mr Chiu
has more than 30 years of experience in banking, financial services and management consultancy in the Asia Pacific
region, Europe and China while working for several leading financial institutions. Prior to joining the Bank, he was a
General Manager, Head of Operations of a leading Chinese bank, and held different senior positions in major financial
institutions.

Chong Hing Bank Limited
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as of 27 February 2020

Mr CHAN Kam Ki Vincent

aged 57, Executive Vice President, has been the Chief Financial Officer of the Bank since April 2017. Mr Chan graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University,
Australia. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was a member of the Institute's
Banking Regulatory Advisory Panel, a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a designation
holder of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a Certified Internal Auditor of The Institute of Internal
Auditors. Mr Chan has more than 30 years of auditing and financial controllership experience in the financial services
industry. He worked for an international accounting firm and held regional roles in major cities of several international
banks and senior positions in regional and local banks prior to joining the Bank.

Mr WOO Pak Kin Clement

aged 44, Executive Vice President, has been the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank since September 2019. Mr Woo holds a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor Degree in Applied
Accounting from Oxford Brookes University. He is a Fellow Chartered and Certified Accountant and a Chartered Financial
Analyst. Mr Woo has more than 20 years of experience in the banking industry covering enterprise risk, credit risk, market
risk and operational risk management, and possesses sound knowledge in formulating bank-wide risk management
framework. Prior to joining the Bank, he was the Risk Management Director and Head of Risk Management of a leading
Chinese bank.

Mr CHUNG Siu Kuen

aged 56, Executive Vice President, has been the Head of Personal Banking Division since August 2018. Mr Chung holds
a degree of Doctor of Business Administration awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Master Degree of
Business and Administration awarded by the University of Birmingham, and a Bachelor of Laws degree awarded by the
University of Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom. Mr Chung possesses over 30 years of working experience in the
financial services industry, and has worked in various local and foreign banks in Hong Kong overseeing retail banking
business. Mr Chung has extensive management experience in wealth management business, consolidated channel
management, as well as deposit and loan products.

Ms CHAN Yun Ling

aged 53, Executive Vice President, has been the Head of Financial Markets Division since April 2015. She holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and had pursued studies in France and the United Kingdom.
Specialising in financial markets business, Ms Chan has worked in major financial hubs including Hong Kong, Tokyo,
Singapore, Shanghai and Taiwan, in charge of financial markets related activities in various financial institutions.

Mr SIN Tat Wo

aged 49, Executive Vice President, Head of Mainland Corporates Division and Acting Head of Hong Kong Corporates
Division. Mr Sin graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. He has
over 2b years of experience in the banking industry in Hong Kong and Mainland. He worked for a number of major Chinese
banks in their corporate, commercial and investment banking departments. Mr Sin joined the Bank in December 2015.

2019 Annual Report
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Ms LAM Pik Ha Eliza

aged b8, Executive Vice President, has been the Head of Financial Institutions Division since September 2018. Ms Lam has
over 30 years of experience in corporate and institutional banking business and has held different senior positions with
various international banks in managing corporate and institutional clients in the Asia Pacific region. Ms Lam obtained a
postgraduate diploma in international marketing of the Society of Business Practitioner (U.K.).

Mr YIP Kui Yin Frederick

aged 50, Executive Vice President, has been the Chief Credit Officer of the Bank since May 2019. Mr Yip joined the Bank
in September 2014 as Co-head of Credit Risk Management and has been appointed as Head of Credit Risk Management
since January 2016. Mr Yip holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts in Business Studies and a Master Degree of Corporate Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and completed Oxford Strategic Leadership Programme from the Said
Business School of the University of Oxford. He is also a Certified Senior Treasury Management Professional (CSTMP). Mr
Yip has held managerial positions in a number of major international and Chinese banks. Mr Yip has more than 20 years of
experience in risk management and more than 18 years of credit approval authority.

Mr WONG Kowk Leung Arthur

aged 53, Executive Vice President, has been the Chief Information Officer of the Bank since September 2019. Mr Wong
graduated and obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration from The University of Warwick (UK). Mr Wong has
more than 30 years of experience in the banking and technology industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr Wong
was the Chief Information Officer/Head of Information Technology of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited, as well as a
number of major Chinese banks and financial institutions.

Ms CHAN 0Oi Hung Blanche

aged 55, Executive Vice President and the Head of Human Resources Division. Ms Chan is a seasoned human resources
practitioner with over 25 years of experience and held senior and head positions with international, regional and local
banks in Hong Kong. Ms Chan received a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in Economics from The University of Hong
Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms Chan joined the Bank
in July 2016.

Ms LAl Wing Nga

aged 55, Executive Vice President, has been appointed the Company Secretary of the Bank since August 2015. Ms Lai has
over 25 years of working experience in the corporate secretarial and governance areas of sizable listed companies and
financial institutions. Prior to joining the Bank, Ms Lai was the group company secretary of AIA Group Limited from April
2010 to July 2015, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 01299). She was the company secretary
of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from April 2005 to March 2010 and before that was the company
secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited from April 2000 to April 2005. Ms Lai obtained a
master of business degree from The University of Newcastle in Australia. She also obtained a postgraduate diploma in
corporate finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms Lai is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the U.K.

Note: The directorships held by the Senior Management in the subsidiaries of the Bank (where applicable) are set out in the “List of names of the directors of Chong Hing

Bank Limited and its subsidiaries” posted on the Bank's website (www.chbank.com/en/personal/footer/about-ch-bank/investor-relations/directors-list/index.shtml).
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ABRIDGED CORPORATE STRUCTURE

as of 27 February 2020

RMEFEBRGHRDT

(GUANGZHOU YUE XIU HOLDINGS LIMITED*)

100%

YUE XIU ENTERPRISES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

100%

YUEXIU FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED OTHERS

75% 25%

CHONG HING BANK LIMITED?

100% 100% 100% 100%

Chong Hing Commaodities Chong Hing Chong Hing Chong Hing Insurance Other

and Futures Limited® Securities Limited* Finance Limited® Company Limited® companies

State-owned enterprise under the supervision of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the Guangzhou Municipal
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SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR

as of 27 February 2020

AUGUST

22

2019

OCTOBER

11

2019

FEBRUARY

27

2020

MAY

11-14

(both days inclusive)

MAY

15

2020

MAY

22-26

(both days inclusive)

JUNE

2020

Interim results for the first half of 2019 announced

Interim cash dividend for 2019 of HK$0.17 per share paid

Final results for the year of 2019 announced

Register of Members will be closed for the purpose of ascertaining entitlements to attend and
vote at the 2020 Annual General Meeting

2020 Annual General Meeting will be held

Register of Members will be closed for the purpose of ascertaining entitlements to receive the
final cash dividend for 2019

If approved by Shareholders at the 2020 Annual General Meeting, the final cash dividend for 2019
of HK$0.41 per share will be payable to Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Bank on 26 May 2020
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Mr Zhang Zhaoxing

Chairman

In 2019, Chong Hing Bank Limited (the "Bank” or “Chong Hing Bank”) maintained its prudent operations and innovative
development amidst the complicated and changeable environment. The Bank continued to enhance its risk control and
operating capacity while adhering to its positioning as a cross-border financial services provider and fully boosting the

Bank's digital transformation and accelerating its strategic nationwide operations.

In the “Top 1000 World Banks" listing released by the British magazine “The Banker” in 2019, Chong Hing Bank ranked
among the top 400 for the first time, a recognition of the constant improvement in the Bank's all-round strength.

| am pleased to announce that in 2019 Chong Hing Bank's core businesses and overall financial position remained strong,
with sound asset quality and enhanced profitability of its core businesses. Operating profit after impairment allowances
amounted to HK$2,249 million, an increase of 14.80% compared to the previous year. Profit attributable to equity owners
amounted to HK$1,901 million, an improvement of 7.97% from the previous year, and earnings per share were HK$1.80.
To properly maintain the balance between the sharing of our success and preserving capital for future growth, the Board
of Directors of the Bank (the “Board”) has recommended the payment of a final cash dividend of HK$0.41 per share for
the year. The total dividend payout for the year as a percentage of this adjusted profit attributable to equity owners, less
distribution paid on the additional equity instruments, will be 32.42% (2018: 39.08%).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The major financial ratios for 2019 are as follows:

| Return on shareholders’ equity: 8.31%

| Average liquidity maintenance ratio: 46.27%

| Total capital ratio as of 31 December 2019: 17.51%

| Tier 1 capital ratio as of 31 December 2019: 14.32%

| Loan to deposit ratio as of 31 December 2019: 69.46%

In view of the slowing economic growth worldwide, the unresolved trade and economic relationship between China and
the US, the geopolitical tensions as well as the postponed Brexit date, a shadow loomed over the global economy in 2019.
The growth in the Mainland's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) for the year slowed to 6.1% although the economy maintained
an overall stable and positive growth trend. Guangdong Province's GDP reached RMB10.5 trillion in 2019, becoming
the first province in China to exceed RMB10 trillion. The rapid growth of its high-tech industry is expected to drive the
development of the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”) further forward. Despite the
economic shocks occurring in 2019, Hong Kong has maintained its status and strengths as an international financial hub.
It will achieve stability in its economic recovery and continue to play a unigue role by making full use of the advantages of
the Greater Bay Area development plan.

In the past year, Chong Hing Bank steadily expanded its Hong Kong market, accelerated the Mainland business and
continuously nurtured the unigue qualities of the cross-border business. Along with the stable implementation of the
development of the Greater Bay Area, the state introduced numerous measures to benefit the region’s citizens and
enterprises. Actively seizing this opportunity, the Bank focused on cross-border finance, and made good use of resources
made available by its controlling shareholder Yuexiu Group and strategic shareholder Guangzhou Metro to launch a
number of distinctive cross-border products and services. The Bank also dedicated itself to serving enterprises and
residents in the Greater Bay Area and strengthened its financial connectivity, endeavouring to be among the region's
leading financial institutions through its competitiveness and outstanding business features.

At the same time, the Bank proactively promoted its nationwide operations, and achieved a breakthrough in its expansion
of Mainland outlets. The Chong Hing Bank Shanghai Branch, the Bank's first branch outside Guangdong Province, opened
in November 2019. This marked a milestone in the Bank's development of a new network across the Pearl River Delta and
Yangtze River Delta regions. It was also a key step forward in its nationwide operations after being a member of Yuexiu
Group for six years. The Shanghai Branch will act as a critical strategic support point for the Bank’s business expansion
in the Yangtze River Delta region and play an essential role in deepening financial cooperation between Guangdong, Hong
Kong, Macau and Shanghai.
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On the other hand, the Bank continued to step up its digital transformation and improve the service quality and customer
experience of digital banking. The trends in Fintech provided a boost for the Bank, which kept itself customer-centric and
demand-oriented and launched a series of optimised services for internet banking and mobile banking. These moves were
successful in achieving a substantial enhancement of the customer experience of the Bank's digital services. Meanwhile,
the Bank has devoted a major effort to rolling out a new core system under which technology professionals are brought
together to promote the Bank's digital capabilities and realise close integration of traditional business, Fintech and
inclusive finance services.

The year 2020 will bring both challenges and opportunities. Chong Hing Bank has full confidence that it can overcome
all difficulties that may arise and grow onwards and upwards. It will achieve this thanks to the steady accumulation
of its sound operations and strengthened risk prevention and controls, while at the same time committing itself to
transformation and innovation. The Bank is also confident of sustaining its competitive advantage in cross-border
operations, being able to fully expand the Mainland market and proactively advance preparations for establishing a
Mainland-incorporated bank. Through its well-organised operations in major economically developed regions, the Bank
will strive to establish itself as an integrated commercial bank with the Greater Bay Area as the core of its nationwide
operations.

Finally, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all Directors and shareholders for their valuable guidance and
unwavering support, also to the management team and the entire Bank staff for their dedication, and to our customers

and business partners for their loyalty and trust. With the concerted efforts of our colleagues at Chong Hing Bank, we will
continue to forge ahead and to exceed and excel.

Zhang Zhaoxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2020
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Mr Zong Jianxin

Chief Executive

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The year 2019 witnessed slowing growth in the global economy mainly due to trade disputes between China and the US
and escalated geopolitical tensions. The US economy maintained moderate growth with a year-on-year increase of 2.1%
in its third quarter Gross Domestic Product (GDP). The Federal Reserve cut interest rates on federal funds three times in
2019, reversing the interest rate cycle for the US dollar. China and the US officially signed the phase one trade agreement
in January 2020 after an 18-month deadlock, thereby making small progress. The European Central Bank adopted
guantitative easing in a bid to stimulate the ailing economy, given sluggish economic growth, weakened external demand
and shrinking manufacturing over a long period as well as a tiny increase of 1.2% in its annual GDP. The Eurozone also
suffered economic uncertainty as the UK withdrew from the European Union in January this year. The UK has yet to agree
on trade matters with the European Union.

The economy of Mainland China maintained a stable development trend as a whole, with annual GDP growth of 6.1%,
in line with market expectations. Per capita GDP exceeded US$10,000 for the first time. In view of the complicated and
changing external political and economic situation, the Central Economic Work Conference in the Mainland proposed
continuing to uphold the “Six Stabilities” (employment, financial, foreign trade, foreign capital, investment, and expectation)
to support the structural supply-side reform, driving the economy to high-quality development with innovative technology.
The People's Bank of China emphasised making prudent monetary policy flexible and appropriate in order to maintain
reasonable and adequate liquidity. At the same time, it encouraged the deepening of market-based reform on interest
rates on a continuous basis in order to keep the RMB exchange rate at a reasonable and balanced level consistently.
However, the performance of the RMB exchange rate was influenced by the Sino-US trade situation, with the trend falling
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after a previous rise. The onshore price (CNY) of RMB and offshore price (CNH) of RMB fell by 1.43% and 1.2% respectively
during the year. In 2019, Chong Hing Bank continuously maintained a steady and progressive development momentum in
the main business areas of the Mainland. Guangzhou continued to record high growth in social investment, with annual
GDP growth of 6.8%; Shenzhen constantly optimised its economic structure and improved quality efficiency, with annual
GDP growth of 6.7%; Shanghai developed emerging industries to support the steady progress of the economy, with an
annual GDP increase of 6%.

Hong Kong's annual GDP fell 1.2% year-on-year in real terms on account of adverse global factors and social events,
the first annual decline since 2009. Influenced by the critical external environment and reduced trade activities, exports
of goods and services decreased by 4.7% and 10.4% respectively in the year. Private consumption dropped 1.1% year-
on-year prompted by a weak growth in internal demand and the economic downturn that undermined consumption.
Deteriorating economic conditions caused unemployment to rise to 3.3% in the fourth quarter. With the US interest rate
cuts in October, major banks in Hong Kong reduced their prime rates for the first time in 11 years. In the property market,
the private residential price index rebounded in November after the government eased the mortgage insurance scheme
in October, ending a five-month decline. Hong Kong stocks experienced ups and downs in response to the Sino-US trade
negotiations, fluctuating by 5,383 points during the year and closing at 28,189 points on the last trading day of 2019, an
accumulated increase of 9.1% for the year.

RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT AND PROFIT ANALYSIS

The results for the financial year of 2019 of the Bank, on a consolidated basis, are summarised below:

KEY FINANCIAL DATA

31 December (12 months)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 Variance
1. Operating profit after impairment allowances 2,248,961 1,959,023 +14.80%
2. Profit attributable to equity owners 1,900,642 1,760,387 +7.97%
3. Net interest income 3,259,860 2,879,962 +13.19%
4. Net fee and commission income 336,591 384,494 -12.46%
5. Net income from trading and investments 241,293 248,155 -2.77%
6. Other operating income 184,461 173,506 +6.31%
7. Operating expenses 1,635,363 1,548,840 +5.59%
8. Net impairment losses on financial assets 137,881 178,254 -22.65%

As of As of

31 December 31 December

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 Variance
9. Loans and advances to customers 118,078,914 101,825,227 +15.96%
10. Deposits from customers 162,664,648 143,690,294 +13.21%
11. Investments in securities 57,534,593 46,986,126 +22.45%
12. Total assets 212,768,034 190,575,638 +11.64%
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KEY FINANCIAL DATA
31 December (12 months) ViEremEe
2019
13. Return on shareholders' equity (Note (7)) 8.31% 9.47% -1.16p.p.
14. Earnings per share (Note (2) HK$1.80 HK$2.14 -15.89%
15. Net interest margin 1.62% 1.73% -0.11p.p.
16. Cost to income ratio 40.66% 42.02% -1.36p.p.
17. Average liquidity maintenance ratio 46.27% 44.49% +1.78p.p.
As of As of
31 December 31 December
2019 2018 Variance
18. Non-performing loan ratio 0.33% 0.35% -0.02p.p.
19. Loan to deposit ratio 69.46% 67.95% +1.51p.p.
20. Net assets value per share
(excluding additional equity
instruments and before the final dividend) HK$22.37 HK$20.80 +7.55%
21. Total capital ratio 17.51% 19.01% -1.50p.p.
22. Tier 1 capital ratio 14.32% 15.19% -0.87p.p.
23. Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 12.28% 13.44% -1.16p.p.
Notes:
(1) Return on shareholders’ equity took into consideration the distribution paid on the additional equity instruments relevant for the period.
(2) Earnings per share were calculated after deducting the distribution paid on the additional equity instruments in the relevant year.
(3) p.p. means percentage point.

ANALYSIS OF KEY FINANCIAL DATA

In 2019, profit attributable to equity owners of the Bank amounted to HK$1,901 million, representing an increase of 7.97%
compared to 2018. The operating profit after impairment allowances amounted to HK$2,249 million, an increase of 14.80%
from 2018.

The increase in consolidated profit for the year was mainly attributable to the increase in net interest income and effective
control over costs as well as sound asset quality. Net interest income was HK$3,260 million, an increase of 13.19% over
the same period last year, which was driven mainly by loan growth.

Net fee and commission income decreased by 12.46% to HK$337 million mainly due to the gloomy investment market

environment, and fewer securities dealings and income from agency services.
Foreign exchange and other treasury customer activities remained stable. Net income from trading and investments

recorded a gain of HK$241 million, which was mainly derived from trading income, foreign currency funding swap

activities and foreign currency transactions with customers.
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The Bank prudently managed costs and strived for optimised procedures and efficiency gains and at the same time
invested in talents and technology systems to support business growth in Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Loans and advances to customers recorded a marked increase of 15.96% to HK$118.1 billion. Given the rapid increase in
loans and advances, the Bank continued to maintain prudent management of credit risk exposure with sound asset quality
of loans and advances.

Deposits from customers grew by 13.21% to HK$162.7 billion. The stable deposit base achieved by the Bank allowed it to
balance loan growth, wealth management and cross-border financial business needs.

Total assets increased by 11.64% to HK$212.8 billion. As at 31 December 2019, 78.66% of the Bank's assets were based in
Hong Kong.

Due to the proactive management of its assets as well as the maturity and structure of its liabilities, the Bank's liquidity
remained stable. The loan to deposit ratio was at 69.46%, and the average liquidity maintenance ratio was 46.27%.

Total capital ratio was at 17.51%, the Tier 1 capital ratio was at 14.32% and the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio was at
12.28%.

Overall, in the face of the adverse business environment in 2019, the Bank's core business lines, financial positions and
asset quality are strong, while impaired loan ratio remains low. Capital adequacy ratio and liquidity maintenance ratio are
above the relevant statutory requirements.

DIVIDEND

To properly maintain the balance between sharing our success and preserving capital for future growth, the Board has
recommended the payment of the final cash dividend of HK$0.41 per share for the financial year of 2019 (2018 final
cash dividend: HK$0.41 per share). Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Bank, the final cash dividend will be paid on Tuesday, 2 June 2020 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Bank on Tuesday, 26 May 2020. Total dividends for the financial year of 2019, including the
interim cash dividend of HK$0.17 per share paid on Friday, 11 October 2019 (2018 interim cash dividend: HK$0.17 per
share), amounted to HK$0.58 per share (2018 total dividends: HK$0.58 per share). The total dividend payout for the year
as a percentage of adjusted profit attributable to equity owners less distribution paid on the additional equity instruments
will be 32.42% (2018: 39.08%).

SUCCESSFUL ISSUANCE OF USS$400 MILLION ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL SECURITIES

Chong Hing Bank successfully issued US$400 million 5.7% Undated Non-Cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1
Capital Securities (the "Securities”) on 15 July 2019, which was completed under the US$2 billion Medium Term Note and
Perpetual Capital Securities Programme of the Bank. The Securities are qualified as Basel Ill-compliant additional tier 1
capital. The proceeds from the offering enabled the Bank to strengthen its capital base and are being used to support its

operations and business development.

The aggregate principal amount of the Securities is US$400 million. The offering received very positive feedback and
drew a total order of US$2.9 billion, representing a subscription of 7.5 times. Once again, the Bank achieved success on
its securities offering in the international capital market, after its issuance of additional tier 1 capital securities in 2014,

indicating the capital market's high recognition of the Bank.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
CORPORATE BANKING

Chong Hing Bank endeavoured to provide a full range of banking products and professional services to its corporate
customers in Hong Kong and the Mainland, including lending, trade finance, cash management, cross-border business
demands and financial markets solutions.

The Bank continued to expand its target customer base, paying special attention to provide diversified and comprehensive
financial services to customers in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (the “Greater Bay Area”). With
regard to assistance for SMEs, the Bank fully supports the “SME Financing Guarantee Scheme” offered by HKMC Insurance
Limited, in addition to our earlier participation in the “SME Loan Guarantee Scheme” of the HKSAR Government. Moreover,
the Bank strengthened its internal cross marketing and further offered corporate customers value-added services such as
financial management for employees, MPF services and wealth management. This was in a bid to create convenient use
of the Bank’s one-stop banking services platform in order to meet customers’ needs for comprehensive financial services.

In 2019, our remarkable performance in the syndication loan business enabled the Bank to gain brand credibility and
reputation in the syndication market. For the full year, the Bank transacted 28 syndicated loans and acted as a lead
arranger among 8 of them. In addition, the Bank proactively enhanced the quality of the loan asset portfolio and improved
relevant returns via secondary market transactions. Moreover, the Bank continued to leverage on its home base strength
in Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau, seizing cross-border business opportunities arising from the Greater Bay Area
development. For the year 2019, the Bank successfully executed seven cross-border structured finance transactions to
offer professional cross-border financial services to worldwide customers.

Meanwhile, the Bank's non-bank financial institution business made good progress, particularly in servicing asset
management, insurance, financing and leasing companies. Adhering to its development strategies in the Greater Bay Area
and leveraging the enhanced cooperation with its Mainland branches and sub-branches, the Bank effectively promoted the
cross-selling of products to non-bank financial institutions. In the fourth quarter of the year, the Bank resumed the Initial
Public Offering (IPQ) financing services for stockbrokers, and considerable revenue was generated for the Bank through
its participation in a number of IPO financing projects in 2019.

Being an integrated commercial bank offering cross-border expertise and leveraging on its competitive edge in network
interaction between Hong Kong and the Mainland, the Bank provided various cross-border financial products and services
to accommodate customers’ funding requirements in the Greater Bay Area, and effectively managed their interest rate
and exchange rate risks through its treasury product portfolio.

Chong Hing Bank Limited
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PERSONAL BANKING

In this year, the business development of retail banking was impacted by the sluggish global economy and Hong
Kong's entry into a technical recession in the third quarter. Under such difficult operating circumstances, the Bank's
Personal Banking Division continued to promote a business model characterised by customer-centric all-round wealth
management, aiming at providing one-stop banking services to customers in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area.

In 2019, the personal banking business continued to record steady growth:

| Total deposits recorded a steady increase this year because of the optimisation of customer segment management
in order to introduce preferential interest rate offers considerately, and the promotion of foreign currency exchange
and foreign exchange forward contracts. In addition, through the strategy of actively expanding the high-value
customer base, the number of wealth management customers increased by 21% year-on-year in 2019, while
premium and private banking customers saw a remarkable rise of 470%. The Bank also proactively supported high-
end customers in optimising their currency portfolio and by providing them with personalised financial management
solutions. The total value of US dollar deposits and investment assets respectively recorded annual growth of
approximately 15% and 27%, further strengthening the sound foundation of the Bank's wealth management
business. In terms of retail loans, the Bank was committed to encouraging premium financing and policy financing
businesses and offering a full range of secured loan products to develop the wealth management business relevant
to product financing as well as to increase the Bank's consolidated income.

| The Bank grasped the new opportunities arising from the financial market and vigorously persevered in encouraging
the transformation strategy of “Finance + Technology” along with the promotion of different financial management
services and the process of optimisation. Since the launch of the Internet Banking and Mobile Banking fund trading
services in the fourth quarter of 2018, the number of fund subscription transactions carried out through electronic
channels, compared with the total number of fund transactions, leaped from 10% in 2018, to approximately 50%
in 2019, and even soared to approximately 76% in the fourth quarter of 2019. For the year, the number of fund
transactions and the total value of investment assets also increased by approximately 35% and 27% respectively
over 2018.

| For the life insurance business, business development opportunities increased owing to changes in external
environmental factors and in the industry's regulatory system. The Bank strived to satisfy customer needs, enrich
agency products of life insurance and carry out policy financing services in order to meet customer demand for a
full range of wealth management services.

| The Bank rolled out an incentive scheme in 2019 to drive customers’ credit card spending effectively, thereby
easing the unfavourable effect on businesses caused by the economic gloom. The Bank engaged in negotiations and
collaborations with third-party companies to realise the two goals of increasing the number of acquired merchants
and also revenue. Additionally, the Bank planned to work with e-commerce payment promoters to develop local and
global online payment services, diversifying its business.
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Looking to the future, personal banking will continuously optimise channels for online transaction to improve the customer
experience. Meanwhile to appeal to new customers, it will vigorously spur the wealth management business to provide
customers with more efficient and outstanding financial management services.
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FINANCIAL MARKETS BUSINESS

The Bank is committed to developing its financial markets business as an essential profit hub and has seen significant
growth during the year in areas such as treasury, customer business and product development. The Bank has established
its proprietary trading business, and while closely monitoring the risks involved, enhanced its ability to provide quotations
and expanded its market share, thereby continuing to increase revenue for the Bank.

With regard to the treasury business, the Bank aims at optimising the balance sheet by effectively applying a variety of
financial instruments while complying with established risk appetite, risk limits and ensuring a safe liquidity level. The
Bank continued to leverage on its dynamic investment strategy and capture potential treasury business opportunities in
order to diversify revenue sources.

In accordance with the strategic set-up of the product and marketing team, the Bank tactically acquires financial talents,
enriches its financial products and offers appropriate advice and services catering to the needs of different customer
segments, thereby increasing its market competitiveness and fee income.

MAINLAND OPERATIONS

In 2019, the Bank's branches and sub-branches in the Mainland actively handled complex changes arising from the
external environment, maintaining steady growth in asset scale along with sound asset quality. As the core business
developed healthily, and the product and service system improved constantly, the cross-border business recorded an
outstanding performance. The Bank realised major breakthroughs in the network of outlets across the Mainland along
with the constant optimisation of internal risk prevention and control and operational processes. Thereby, the Bank
effectively consolidated the customer base and substantially improved the overall operating efficiency, maintaining a
favourable development trend.
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With the aim of realising a comprehensive and balanced business, the Bank benefited the company’s deposits by widening
customer channels, strengthening loan customer management and developing cross-border business. In terms of loan
business, the Bank comprehensively enhanced its business varieties and scale returns by means of diversifying products
such as syndicated and M&A loans, and accelerating loan business development. Moreover, it gradually increased loan
yields through enhancing customer service capabilities and loan price management. In addition, the Bank effectively
increased its revenue from intermediary business by establishing an investment bank team and a system for diversifying
products. In the meantime, the Bank stepped up customer expansion by perfecting the evaluation mechanism for
relationship managers and the set-up of the customer segment management and service system.

The Mainland institutional business of the Bank maintained a sound development trend during the year. The Guangzhou
Branch continuously expanded its institution customers and enhanced customer services, maintaining a satisfactory
increase in institution deposits. Being the first partner collaborating with the smart financial service platform of Nanshan
District in Shenzhen, the Shenzhen Branch worked closely with the government. The Foshan Sub-branch successfully
developed a collaborative relationship with the Foshan Public Resources Trading Platform, rising from zero to
breakthrough level.

This year's cross-border business also accomplished rapid growth with constantly enhanced service capabilities. The
Bank proactively participated in the development strategy of the Greater Bay Area, launching a series of financial products
and services that allowed residents and enterprises from Hong Kong and Macau to live and work in the Greater Bay Area.
These measures involved professional, efficient and quality cross-border financial services such as mortgage loans for
Hong Kong and Macau residents, and “one-stop access to Shenzhen-Hong Kong commercial services”. Furthermore, the
settlement amount of the Bank surged more than 90% year-on-year in 2019 due to energetic engagement in cross-border
RMB clearing and cross-border settlement.

The Bank made critical breakthroughs in its outlets across the Mainland. The Shanghai Branch, which was approved
to prepare for operations in February 2019, officially opened on 26 November 2019 after nine months of preparation.
The Branch is the first operating outlet set up by the Bank in the Yangtze River Delta region and its opening represented
a new milestone for further development of the Bank's Mainland business. Now, Chong Hing Bank has formed a new
development pattern covering the Pearl River Delta region and the Yangtze River Delta region. In addition, the Foshan
Chancheng Sub-branch of the Bank obtained a financial licence issued by domestic regulators during the year and
officially began operations in February 2020, facilitating the Bank's outlet distribution over the Greater Bay Area.
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The opening of the Shanghai Branch on 26 November 2019 represents a
major step in the Bank's plan to set up a nationwide network.
its major shareholder Yuexiu Group, a further enhancement of its cross-

border financial services.
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CHONG HING SECURITIES LIMITED

Due to the Sino-US trade friction and Hong Kong's social events, the overall sentiment of local retail securities investment
and transactions suffered a setback. Investors tended to be cautious about entering the market. Such market conditions
affected the overall turnover and commission income of Chong Hing Securities for the year and they were lower than
in the previous year. However, with Chong Hing Securities’ synergies with the Bank, the number of online and cross-
border customers continuously increased compared to 2018. The forthcoming mobile application launched by Chong Hing
Securities, using faster and more convenient investment tools, as well as numerous preferential offer promotions will
contribute to higher customer appetite for securities investment, greater customer loyalty, and higher revenue for the
Bank.

CHONG HING INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

During the year, the highly competitive general insurance business together with the impact of local social events
undermined the general insurance market business in Hong Kong. However, Chong Hing Insurance maintained
satisfactory growth this year and recorded a gain in its underwriting and profit before taxation.

Chong Hing Insurance will strengthen its synergies with Chong Hing Bank's different channels, riding on the development
of the online platform and striving to explore new business opportunities in order to achieve better efficiency and results.

TRANSFORMATION OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
Fintech

Keeping fully abreast of market trends, the Bank rolled out its fintech products and services and speeded up cross-border
fintech development and implementation of regulatory technology in support of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority's
promotion of Smart Banking. In addition, the Bank's digital banking transformation teams, responsible for encouraging the
digital and infrastructure transformation, were further enhanced. In the past three years, a total of 22 systems relevant to
the projects have been launched to support the digitalisation of the banking business and to expand vigorously the banking
ecosystem and customer base under different scenarios. The Bank will also collaborate closely with business partners to

offer a number of financial service solutions, including:

| Remote opening of a fund account; online personal loans entering the implementation phase.

| Digitalisation of branches, including tablet personal computers that support transactions, card-less ATM
withdrawals via QR codes, voice navigation ATMs, a “Faster Payment System” to receive and pay via QR codes, and

the new core system becomes available by the end of this year.

| Collaborating with JETCO and implementing the second phase of the Open Application Programming Interface (Open
API), by which customers can apply for the Bank's services through a third-party service provider.

| In 2018, the Bank began the blockchain network of the clearing bank to improve the efficiency of anti-money

laundering investigations and optimise remittances and customer services. This is conducive to cost reduction and
high efficiency of regulatory technology and risk control.
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Process Banking

The smooth implementation of 82 process optimisation projects over the past three years enabled the Bank to enhance
the customer experience, reduce costs and improve quality. Through the intensified process transformation, the Bank
concentrated all transactions by corporate customers in the lower-cost Kowloon Bay Central Exchange for intensive
processing so that branches and frontline employees could focus on customers and sales services. For the purposes of
efficient control of costs, satisfactory customer experience and low operational risks, the Bank introduced mechanical
process automation software when handling the intensification. Moreover, the Bank released new service content for
commercial customers to enhance the customer experience of banking services, including “new account opening in five
days”, "bank confirmation issuance in three days”, and account opening via making online appointments. The Bank will
continue its efforts to make traditional businesses available online by technology applications and create high business
efficiency by digital process reengineering.

CORPORATE CULTURE

Through carrying out numerous, diverse and innovative cultural activities in 2019, the Bank comprehensively supported
the building up of its corporate culture and reinforced the employees’ recognition of corporate culture concepts and their
practices in order to create a cultural atmosphere of “Exceed « Excel”.

| This year 35 corporate culture training activities were organised for approximately 1,400 persons covering Board
members, management and employees, inculcating the corporate culture spirit in all levels of the Bank.

| The "Corporate Culture Ambassador Programme” was launched in which ambassadors from all Bank units were
selected as mentors in order to promote the corporate culture.

| The "Bright Ideas” sharing platform was established to facilitate staff members to make suggestion for innovation
and improvement in terms of the Bank's competitiveness and sustainable development. Each quarter the best ideas
were selected, with many successfully put into practice.

| The introduction of a specially designed platform for supervisors to record staff performance, documenting
employees’ work results, appreciating their contribution in a timely manner, and boosting employee morale.

| Introduction of innovative corporate culture training that includes recording real-life work stories from employees
and putting them on microfilm to demonstrate the Bank's spirit of “Dedication”, “Innovation”, “Commitment” and
“Teamwork”. A quiz was conducted to raise employees’ awareness of the preferred behaviour under different
scenarios with the management personally offering the explanation in line with the Chong Hing culture and
promoting the corporate cultural mindset.

| To understand employees’ views on our corporate culture, the Bank worked with a third-party research team to run
two questionnaires this year, evaluating employees’ opinions and behavioural changes so as to help Chong Hing
Bank formulate corporate cultural strategies for the future.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

To achieve its corporate mission of “To benefit the Community”, the Bank has committed itself to improving the well-being
of the community and is an enthusiastic supporter of charitable causes while simultaneously developing our business.
Fulfilling its corporate responsibility, it actively supports and engages in the activities of social welfare organisations,
environmental organisations and cultural groups.
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ACTIVITIES FOR COMMUNITY, ENVIRONMENT AND ART

| In January, the Bank held a visitors' day and career orientation sharing session for 50 students of the Baptist Qi
Kwan Social Service (the "BOKSS"); participated in a Green Power Hike for a Green Future; and participated in the
Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust “Jockey Club Age-friendly City Partnership Scheme”.
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| In May, the Bank held the "Visiting elders on the Dragon Boat Festival” with the Helping Hand Association; supported
the "Education Workshop for Smart Money” launched by the Hong Kong Association of Banks; and engaged in public
voluntary teaching called "Big Hands in Small Hands" held by the Yuexiu Group in Yingde, Guangdong.
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| In July, the Bank held the “Dreams for the Future” financial sharing session with the BOKSS for the “Children’s
Development Fund” of the Labour and Welfare Bureau.
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| In September, the Bank organised the "Community Pastoral Leisure Tour”, visiting the Eco-tour 330 in Tuen Mun
District with the mentally handicapped from the Fu Hong Society, and with students arranged by the BOKSS,
practising living a green life while expressing support for social inclusion; and sponsored the Po Leung Kuk's charity
Cantonese opera special “The Empress Flower” and the “Fine Art Asia & Ink Asia 2019" of Eastern and Western Art.

Through the Bank’'s branch network and in its support for numerous charities such as the Yan Oi Tong, Hong Kong
Federation of the Blind, Po Leung Kuk and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the Bank carried out various community fund-
raising activities including selling raffle tickets, collecting donations with flag bags, and setting up donation boxes. In
addition, the Bank contributed to public welfare by inserting promotional leaflets of charities in its Bank mailers sent to
customers.
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ACHIEVEMENTS UNDER CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

To fulfil its social responsibilities, the Bank advocates protection of the environment, supports education and culture as

well as assists the disadvantaged through diversified public welfare activities. The Bank's involvement in serving society

was recognised by various sectors of the community. In 2019, it received the following awards and recognition:

| The "2019 Talent Development Award” and the “Freshman
Prize” of "Certified Banker (Stage 1)" professional
qualifications presented by the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers.

| The "Employer of Choice Award” won for the third
consecutive year and presented by JobMarket.

| The "Platinum Award” won for the fourth consecutive year
for compliance with the “Charter on External Lighting”
organised by the Environment Bureau of the HKSAR.

| The 10 Years Plus “Caring Company” logo awarded by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

| The Certification of CO2 Reduction in Paper Recycling
awarded by the Integrated Waste Solutions Group and
recognising the Bank's enthusiasm for reducing paper
consumption and promoting waste reduction at source.

| The "“Third Winner for the Industrial and Commercial
Institutions and the Groups in the Charity Lottery Bazaar
Competition” title and the "Raffle Tickets Selling Award”
presented by the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

Chong Hing Bank Limited
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Bank fully recognises the importance to the sustainable development of the Bank of compliance with relevant
regulations and regulatory requirements and the maintenance of good corporate governance standards. Hence the
Bank adopts and implements corresponding measures to ensure compliance with relevant regulations and regulatory
requirements in order to maintain high-quality corporate governance.

For details of the Bank's corporate governance practices, please refer to the section entitled "Corporate Governance
Report” of this Annual Report.

AWARDS

The Bank is committed to providing quality banking services and improving operational efficiency. In 2019, it received the
following awards and recognition from professional bodies:

| Selected among the “Top 1000 World Banks" of the British magazine “The Banker” for many years, and ranked
among the top 400 for the first time in 2019 (in the 398th place), a further recognition from the international
community of the Bank's all-round strength.

| The "Best SME's Partner Award” from the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business for the
11th time, and the "Best SME's Partner Gold Award 2019". ¢ fﬁ‘[

Chong Hing Bank
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| The “Straight Through Processing (STP) Award” of the
US dollar from the Bank of New York Mellon for the 11th
consecutive year.
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Chong Hing Bank Limited

| Two “Straight Through Processing (STP) Awards” from
Citibank, including US dollar wholesale payment services
and commercial payment services.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Chong Hing Bank will constantly allocate resources to strengthen risk management, enhance profitability and create
value through professionalism, ensuring the smooth implementation of its strategic planning in an orderly manner. The
coronavirus outbreak has brought much pressure on the economy in both Mainland China and Hong Kong, and various
industries are being affected. The extent of the impact on Hong Kong's financial services sector and on Chong Hing Bank
will depend on when the disease is effectively contained. We will closely monitor the development of the outbreak and
continue to implement precautionary measures. The Bank is confident that with the decline of the outbreak, Hong Kong's
economy will gradually bounce back.

Looking ahead, the Bank will secure its business development in Hong Kong by leveraging on its unique competitive
edge. In the meantime, with the continuous enhancement of its strategic efforts to develop the Mainland market, the
Bank will further expand its outlet network in core cities in an orderly manner, thus gradually achieving basic coverage
of the economically developed regions in the Mainland. In addition to grasping cross-border business opportunities, the
Bank will roll out distinctive and differentiated cross-border financial products and services to serve enterprises and
residents in the Greater Bay Area alike in response to the Greater Bay Area development plan. The Bank will also further
deepen synergies with and actively enhance Mainland businesses by using the substantial resources of the Bank's
major shareholder Yuexiu Group and the network of strategic shareholders. Moreover, the Bank will carry forward its
digital transformation by setting up a business team to carry out such a transformation in the Mainland. The Bank will
continue to explore further cross-border cooperation in the Greater Bay Area and the application of fintech, creating a new
competitive edge in digital competition and driving forward the corporate vision of itself as “an integrated commercial
bank with cross-border expertise”.

APPRECIATION

In light of the rapidly changing global circumstances, the business environment is expected to be ever more complex and
challenging. Chong Hing Bank will firmly seize the development opportunities from the development of the Greater Bay
Area to maintain robust operations highlighted by its risk-management and customer-centric orientation. It will make full
use of its rich financial management experience of over 70 years, its outstanding brands, professional management teams
and loyal customer base. Embarking on its new journey, the Bank will keep abreast of all the latest trends in fintech and
vigorously seek new developments.

I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the Board of Directors for their valuable guidance and support in the smooth
advancement of the development strategy of the Bank. | would also like to express my appreciation to the management
team and all staff for their contributions and dedication in the past year, especially during the recent coronavirus outbreak
when we all remain committed to delivering our best and stand together to fight the virus. The Bank will continue to
develop steadily and provide even higher quality and more professional financial services for customers and create
greater value for shareholders.

Zong Jianxin
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 27 February 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Bank is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial services. The principal activities and other

particulars of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (the
“CQ"), including a fair review of the business and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Bank
and its subsidiaries (the "Group”), particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end
of the financial year 2019 (if any), as well as indication of likely future development in the Group’s business are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Chief Executive's Statement” and "Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” contained in this Annual Report. Discussions on the environmental policies and performance, compliance by
the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group and an account of the key
relationships of the Group with its stakeholders are contained in the "2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
(the "ESG Report”), which is an online report available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”) and the Bank. The abovementioned sections and the ESG Report form part of this Annual Report.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The Group's total operating income (net of interest expense and fee and commission expense) is analysed and reported by

significant business classes as follows:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Corporate and personal banking 3,048,250 2,722,166
Financial markets activities 519,751 499373
Securities business 114,384 144,461
Others 339,820 320,117
4,022,205 3,686,117

The corporate and personal banking services provided by the Group are principally lending and trade finance facilities,
auto financing, consumer financing, overdraft facilities, mandatory provident fund services, provision of fixed deposits,
current and savings accounts, credit cards and personal wealth management services. The Group also provides fully
automated telephone and internet banking services to its customers. Other banking services offered include remittance

and money exchange, safe deposit boxes, autopay and direct debit services.

Financial markets activities mainly comprise inter-bank placement and deposit transactions, management of overall
interest rate risk and liquidity of the Group and centralised cash management. Income from foreign exchange activities is
generated from services provided to customers in the form of foreign exchange trading and forward contracts, and from

the Bank's cash management activities through foreign currency funding swaps.

2019 Annual Report
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Securities business of the Group includes securities trading, stockbroking and futures broking.

Others comprise investment holding, insurance, other investment advisory services and property investments.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total of interest

income and other operating income of the Group for the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated income statement and the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 76 and 77.

An interim cash dividend of HK$0.17 per share was paid to the shareholders during the year. The Board has recommended
the payment of a final cash dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$0.41 per share (2018: HK$0.41 per

share) to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Bank on 26 May 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves are shown in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties were revalued during the year. The net decrease in fair value arising on the
revaluation, which has been debited directly to the consolidated income statement, amounted to HK$4,431,000. Details of

the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in the property and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no

movement in the share capital of the Bank during the year.

ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL SECURITIES

On 15 July 2019, the Bank issued US$400 million 5.7% Undated Non-cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities (the "New Securities”), which was completed under the US$2 billion Medium Term Note and Perpetual Capital
Securities Programme of the Bank. The New Securities are listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 04419), the offering
of which raised a total of net proceeds of HK$3,111,315,000. The net proceeds enabled the Bank to strengthen its capital

base and are being used to support its operations and business development.

Chong Hing Bank Limited
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BANK'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Bank completed the redemption of US$300,000,000 Undated Non-cumulative Subordinated Additional Tier 1 Capital
Securities (Stock Code: 05804, the “Securities”) in full on 25 September 2019. The listing of the Securities from the Stock

Exchange was withdrawn upon the close of business on 4 October 2019.

Save for the above, neither the Bank nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any other of the Bank's listed

securities during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Bank during the year or subsisted at the end of the year. No options have been

granted under the said scheme since its adoption in 2012.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this Report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr ZONG Jianxin (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr LAU Wai Man (Deputy Chief Executive)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing (Chairman)
Mr LI Feng

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred BBs, JP

Ms CHEN Jing

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew
Mr LEE Ka Lun

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph

Article 100 of the Bank's Articles of Association stipulates that, among other things, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, who have been longest in office since their last election, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at each annual general meeting. Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.2 in the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Accordingly, Messrs Lau Wai Man, Chow Cheuk Yu Alfred and Lee Ka Lun shall retire and offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank (the "2020 AGM") to be held on 15 May 2020.
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Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the 2020 AGM are set out in the circular to the shareholders sent

together with this Annual Report.

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has a service contract with the Bank and/or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Bank within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Bank has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Bank still considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors to be

independent.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on the boards of the Bank's subsidiaries during the year

and up to the date of this Report:

Mr CHAN Kam Ki Vincent" Mr LAl Kwok Wai Paul

Mr CHAN Man Mei Mr LAU Wai Man

Mr CHAN Tai On Mr LEUNG Chan Keung

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew
Mr CHIU Tak Wah Edward Mr MA Wai Leung

Ms CHIU Yau Sim®@ Mr SEI Wing Keen

Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred Mr WONG Wan Hong

Mr CHU Shiu Man Mr WOO Pak Kin Clement®
Mr CHUN Ka Wing Mr ZONG Jianxin

Notes:

(1) Appointed as a Director of the relevant subsidiary of the Bank on 17 September 2019.

(2) Retired as a Director of the relevant subsidiary of the Bank on 1 January 2020.

(3) Appointed as a Director of the relevant subsidiaries of the Bank on 2 January 2020.

A list setting out specifically the directorship of each individual subsidiary of the Bank is updated whenever there
are directorate changes and is posted on the Bank’'s website (www.chbank.com/en/personal/footer/about-ch-bank/

investor-relations/directors-list/index.shtml).
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DIRECTORS’ (INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S) INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As of 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors (including the Chief Executive) of the Bank in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “"SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO (the "Register”), or as otherwise notified to the Bank and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), were as

follows:

INTERESTS IN SHARES

Number of ordinary shares held,

nature and capacity of interests

Family
Personal Interests Corporate
Interests  (interest of Interests
(held as spouse (interest of Approximate
beneficial or child controlled Total  percentage
Name of Director ~ Associated Corporation  Long/short position owner) under 18) corporation) interests  of interests!”
Li Feng Yuexiu Property Long position 172,900 - - 172,900 0.001%
Company Limited
Lee Ka Lun Yuexiu Property Long position 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000 0.021%
Company Limited
Yu Lup Fat Joseph  Yuexiu Property Long position 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 0.026%
Company Limited
Note:
(1) The approximate percentage of interests held was calculated on the basis of 15,482,280,438 ordinary shares of Yuexiu Property Company Limited in

issue as at 31 December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, to the knowledge of the Bank, none of the Directors (including the Chief
Executive) of the Bank had any other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Bank or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFOQ) as recorded in the Register, or as

otherwise notified to the Bank and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Saved as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2019, none of the Directors (including the Chief Executive) of the Bank and
their spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted, or exercised, any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures

of the Bank or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

At no time during the year was the Bank or any of its holding companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Bank or any other body corporate, with the exception of the share option scheme as described under the
heading "EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS" of this Report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those interests disclosed below under the heading "CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS", no transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Bank or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Bank or an entity
connected with a Director (within the meaning of Section 486 of the CO) had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Bank.

DISCLOSURE OF CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information required to be disclosed by Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the date of the Bank's 2019 Interim
Report and up to 27 February 2020 (being the date of this Annual Report) are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Change

Mr Li Feng . Appointed as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Non-executive Director Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited with effect from 25
September 2019

Ms Chen Jing . Resigned as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Non-executive Director Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited with effect from 25
September 2019

Mr Cheng Yuk Wo . Resigned as Independent Non-executive Director of C.P.

Independent Non-executive Director Lotus Corporation* with effect from 28 October 2019

° Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director,
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee of C.P. Pokphand
Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 00043) with effect from 1 January

2020
Mr Ma Chiu Cheung Andrew . Resigned as Chairman but remains as a member of
Independent Non-executive Director each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,

Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (Stock Code:
00043) with effect from 1 January 2020

*

Delisted from the Stock Exchange on 28 October 2019
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information relating to the Directors of the Bank that is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Bank on a named basis are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements. Starting from 1 January 2018, the annual fees for the Chairman and members of the Audit Committee,

Connected Party Transactions Committee (the "CPT Committee”), Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Risk

Committee and Special Board Committee (for an IT Project) (the "SBC") are as follows:

Audit CPT Nomination Remuneration Risk
Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Chairman HK$100,000 HK$80,000 HK$80,000 HK$80,000 HK$80,000  HK$100,000
Member HK$20,000 HK$20,000"  HK$20,000 HK$20,000 HK$20,000 HK$20,000?
Notes:
(1) Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer of the Bank, who also served as members of the CPT Committee, are not entitled to receive the

abovementioned membership fee.

(2) Executive Directors of the Bank, who also served as members of the SBC, are not entitled to receive the abovementioned membership fee. The

remaining members of the SBC are Mr LEE Ka Lun (being the Chairman of the SBC) and Mr LI Feng.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Bank has set up the Remuneration Committee, responsibilities of which include reviewing and approving the
performance-based remuneration packages payable to Directors and Senior Management, if any, by reference to the

Bank's corporate goals and objectives.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bank's Articles of Association, every Director or other officer of the Bank shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Bank against any liability (to the extent permitted by the CO) incurred by them or any
of them as the holder of any such office or appointment to a person other than the Bank or any of its holding companies,
its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries. The Bank has taken out insurance against any liability associated with defending

any proceedings which may be brought against the Directors and other officers of the Bank.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As of 31 December 2019, the following persons, other than the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Bank, had interests

or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Bank as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS IN SHARES
Approximate
Long/ Nature and Number of percentage of
short position capacity of interests ordinary shares interests"
Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited" Long position Direct interests/ 729,394,500 75%
Beneficial owner
Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings) Limited Long position Corporate interests/Interests of 729,394,500 75%
("YX Enterprises”) a controlled corporation
Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited* Long position Corporate interests/Interests of 729,394,500 75%
(BMNEEEERHERAR) a controlled corporation
("GZYX Holdings")
BMEEEERARY Long position Interests of a controlled 70,126,000 7.21%
Guangzhou Metro Group Co., Ltd.* corporation
Notes:
(1) The approximate percentage of interests held was calculated on the basis of 972,526,094 ordinary shares of the Bank in issue as at 31 December
2019.

(2) Yuexiu Financial Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by YX Enterprises, and YX Enterprises is wholly-owned by GZYX Holdings.

3) Pursuant to the SFO, BN 135 £ BB R A 7] (Guangzhou Metro Group Co., Ltd.*) is deemed to be interested in 70,126,000 ordinary shares of the Bank

as a result of its indirect holding of such shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, details of which were as follows:

Name Long position in shares

Guangzhou Metro Investment Finance (HK) Limited (Note (i) 70,126,000

(i) 70,126,000 ordinary shares of the Bank were held by Guangzhou Metro Investment Finance (HK) Limited, which is wholly-owned by J& /{355
£ AR A7 (Guangzhou Metro Group Co., Ltd.*). Guangzhou Metro Investment Finance (HK) Limited and /&)1 5 @ 5 BR 2 &)(Guangzhou
Metro Group Co., Ltd*) are legally and beneficially owned as to 7.21% by 70,126,000 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person, other than the Directors or the Chief Executive of the Bank
whose interests are set out in the above section headed “Directors’ (including the Chief Executive's) interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”, had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying

shares of the Bank as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

* for identification purpose only

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this Report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the

information that is publicly available to the Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Bank.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The connected transactions between the Group and GZYX Holdings and its associates (as defined under Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules) (collectively referred to as the “Yue Xiu Group”) during the year under review were as follows:

The Bank handled routine banking transactions for the members of the Yue Xiu Group. Services provided
by the Bank included cheque clearing, accepting deposits, extending credit facilities, foreign exchange
transactions, remittances and other banking and financial services. Such transactions were conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Bank, and are exempt from

the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As set out in the Bank’'s announcement dated 25 October 2017, the Bank and Guangzhou Yuexiu Financial
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EMEFEREHEZER A F]) (“Yuexiu Financial Technology”) (an associate of GZYX
Holdings) entered into an Information Technology Framework Agreement (the “IT Framework Agreement”)
on 25 October 2017 which governs the provision of various information technology related services (the “IT
Services”) by Yuexiu Financial Technology and its subsidiaries (the “Yuexiu Financial Technology Group”) to
the Group. The term of the IT Framework Agreement commenced on 25 October 2017 and shall end on 31
August 2020 (both dates inclusive). The fees charged by the Yuexiu Financial Technology Group for the IT
Services to be supplied to the Group under the IT Framework Agreement will be determined with reference
to the expected costs to be incurred in the course of provision of the IT Services to the Group, volume and
duration of the IT Services required, and the prevailing market prices of the same or similar services offered

by independent third parties.

The total fees incurred in respect of the IT Services provided by the Yuexiu Financial Technology Group to the
Group during the financial year 2019 were HK$16,749,598, which was within the annual cap of HK$72,930,000

as announced on 25 October 2017.

As set out in the Bank's announcement dated 29 March 2018, Guangzhou Tianhe Sub-Branch of the Bank
("Guangzhou Tianhe Sub-Branch”) and Guangzhou Jiayao Real Estate Company Limited* (BM{ERE XS
FR/A7F]) ("Guangzhou Jiayao”) (an associate of YX Enterprises) entered into a Tenancy Agreement (the "YX
Financial Tower Tenancy Agreement”) on 29 March 2018 for the lease of Units 102-01, 201 and 301, Yuexiu
Financial Tower, 28 Zhujiang East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, the People's Republic of China ("PRC") (the
“YX Financial Tower Property”)* at a monthly rent (inclusive of 5% VAT) of RMB166,576.20 from 1 April 2018
to 30 April 2018, RMB166,577.25 from 1 May 2018 to 31 May 2018, RMB333,153.45 from 1 June 2018 to 31
March 2019, RMB166,576.20 from 1 April 2019 to 30 April 2019, RMB166,577.25 from 1 May 2019 to 31 May
2019, RMB333,153.45 from 1 June 2019 to 31 March 2020, RMB166,576.20 from 1 April 2020 to 30 April 2020,
RMB166,577.25 from 1 May 2020 to 31 May 2020 and RMB333,153.45 from 1 June 2020 to 31 March 2021.
Guangzhou Tianhe Sub-Branch was entitled to a rent concession in an aggregate amount of RMB333,153.45
(inclusive of tax) for the first two months of each year of the lease period. If the YX Financial Tower Tenancy
Agreement is terminated before its expiry date for reasons not related to Guangzhou Jiayao, Guangzhou
Tianhe Sub-Branch will no longer be entitled to such rent concession and will be required to immediately
repay Guangzhou Jiayao the difference between the rents payable during the aforesaid rent concession period

and the actual rents paid.
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On 29 March 2018, Guangzhou Tianhe Sub-Branch and Guangzhou Yue Xiu City Construction Jones Lang
LaSalle Property Services Co., Ltd.* (BEMEFEWMEF B ITWEREER 2 F]) ("GZYX Jones Lang”) (an
associate of YX Enterprises) entered into a Property Management Agreement for the provision of management

services in relation to the YX Financial Tower Property at a monthly management fee of RMB48,743.

On 29 March 2018, Guangzhou Branch of the Bank (“Guangzhou Branch”) and Guangzhou Yuyao Real Estate
Company Limited* (BNZERE XA F) (an associate of YX Enterprises) entered into a Site Agreement
for the lease of the rooftop of Yuexiu Financial Tower, 28 Zhujiang East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC
(the "Site") for display of the Bank’s logo at the rooftop of the Site at an annual rental fee (inclusive of tax) of
RMB800,000.

The total rents, management fees and rental fees of the Site incurred during the financial year 2019 were
RMB5,049,603.95, which were within the annual cap of RMBb5,109,000 as announced on 29 March 2018.

D.  Assetoutin the Bank's announcement dated 30 November 2018, Guangzhou Branch and Guangzhou Jingyao
Real Estate Company Limited* (BM SR EZAFRAF]) (an associate of YX Enterprises) entered into a new
Tenancy Agreement on 30 November 2018 for the lease renewal of Rooms 01-16, 50/F, Yuexiu Financial
Tower, 28 Zhujiang East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC (the “YX Tower Property”) at a monthly rent
(inclusive of 5% VAT) of RMB714,486.15 from 1 December 2018 to 30 November 2020 and RMB757,355.55
from 1 December 2020 to 30 November 2021.

On 30 November 2018, Guangzhou Branch and GZYX Jones Lang entered into a new Property Management
Agreement for the provision of management services in relation to the YX Tower Property at a monthly
management fee of RMB100,761.

The total rents and management fees incurred during the financial year 2019 were RMB9,782,965.80, which

were within the annual cap of RMB9,904,000 as announced on 30 November 2018.

E. As set out in the Bank's announcement dated 17 May 2019, the Bank and GZYX Holdings entered into a Foreign
Exchange and Financial Markets Transactions Framework Agreement (the “2019 Framework Agreement”) on
17 May 2019 to renew the arrangements under the framework agreement dated 17 June 2016 entered into
between the Bank and GZYX Holdings which governs the foreign exchange transactions and financial markets
transactions (the “FX and FM Transactions”) to be entered into between the Group and GZYX Holdings and its
non-listed subsidiaries (the "Yuexiu Holdings Private Group”). The term of the 2019 Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2019 and shall end on 31 December 2021 (both dates inclusive). The FX and FM
Transactions between the Group and the Yuexiu Holdings Private Group adopted the prevailing market prices

or rates normally applicable to similar transactions conducted with independent third parties.
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Mr Zhang Zhaoxing, being common director of the Bank and GZYX Holdings on the date of execution of the
2019 Framework Agreement, abstained from voting on the resolutions approving the 2019 Framework
Agreement and the FX and FM Transactions contemplated thereunder (including the annual caps). Save as
disclosed above, none of the Directors has any material interest in the 2019 Framework Agreement and the

FX and FM Transactions contemplated thereunder (including the annual caps).

As of 31 December 2019, the aggregate absolute amount of fair value at inception of the FX and FM
Transactions recorded as assets/liabilities was HK$3,680,418, which was within the annual cap of HK$30

million for the financial year 2019 as announced on 17 May 2019.

F. As set out in the Bank's announcement dated 21 August 2019, the Bank and Yuexiu Property Company Limited
("Yuexiu Property”) (an associate of YX Enterprises) entered into a Foreign Exchange Transactions Framework
Agreement (the "2019 FX Framework Agreement”) on 21 August 2019 to renew the arrangements under the
framework agreement dated 29 November 2016 entered into between the Bank and Yuexiu Property which
governs the foreign exchange transactions (the “FX Transactions”) to be entered into between the Group
and Yuexiu Property and its subsidiaries (the “Yuexiu Property Group”). The term of the 2019 FX Framework
Agreement commenced on 1 January 2019 and shall end on 31 December 2021 (both dates inclusive). The FX
Transactions between the Group and the Yuexiu Property Group adopted the prevailing market prices or rates

normally applicable to similar transactions conducted with independent third parties.

Mr Li Feng, Ms Chen Jing, Mr Lee Ka Lun and Mr Yu Lup Fat Joseph, being common directors of the Bank and
Yuexiu Property on the date of execution of the 2019 FX Framework Agreement, abstained from voting on the
resolutions approving the 2019 FX Framework Agreement and the FX Transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the annual caps). Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any material interest in the
2019 FX Framework Agreement and the FX Transactions contemplated thereunder (including the annual

caps).

As of 31 December 2019, the aggregate absolute amount of fair value at inception of the FX Transactions
recorded as assets/liabilities was HK$947,617, which was within the annual cap of HK$30 million for the

financial year 2019 as announced on 21 August 2019.

ii. The connected transactions between the Bank and its Directors and their associates during the year under review

were as follows:

The Bank handled routine banking transactions for its Directors and their associates, including cheque clearing,
accepting deposits, extending credit facilities, foreign exchange transactions, remittances and other banking and
financial services. Such transactions were conducted under terms and conditions normally applicable to customers
of comparable standing, and are exempt from the relevant disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.
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The transactions described in sub-section (i) (comprising items A to F) and sub-section (i) above are collectively referred

to as the “Continuing Connected Transactions” entered into by the Group.

The Bank's external auditor was engaged to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Bank to the Stock Exchange. The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the Continuing Connected
Transactions and the auditor’s letter and have confirmed that those transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms, and in accordance with the respective
agreements governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of shareholders of the
Bank as a whole.

Certain related party transactions (the "RPT Transactions”) as disclosed under note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Such RPT
Transactions are either disclosed in sub-section (i) above or exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules because they are (1) below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules or (2)
fallen within the exemptions under Rules 14A.87 and 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

* for identification purpose only

# The address of YX Financial Tower Property as set out in the Bank's announcement dated 29 March 2018 was Units 101-01, 201 and 301, Yuexiu
Financial Tower, 28 Zhujiang East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC, which was subsequently corrected as Units 102-01, 207 and 301, Yuexiu
Financial Tower, 28 Zhujiang East Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for the service contracts, no other contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole or any

substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered into or subsisting during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations amounting to approximately HK$125,000 (2018:
HK$336,000).
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Details of the Bank's corporate governance practices are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual

Report.

AUDITOR

Messrs PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment as the Bank's auditor at the

2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Zhaoxing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 February 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Chong Hing Bank Limited (the “Bank”) is an authorized institution supervised by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the
"HKMA”") under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance (the "Banking Ordinance”). The Bank is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance, with a view to safeguarding the interests of shareholders, customers, employees and

other stakeholders.

The Bank has applied the principles in the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"Stock Exchange”) and the
module on “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions” ("CG-1") under the Supervisory Policy

Manual ("SPM") issued by the HKMA to its corporate governance structure and practices.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code, except for deviation from the code provision A.4.1. Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all Non-executive Directors of the Bank are not
appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the

Bank ("AGM") in accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association (the “Articles of Association”).

The Bank has adopted its own code for securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than those set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”). All Directors confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Bank, that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code and the Bank's own code for securities transactions by Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for the sustainable performance of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the "Group”),
including the consistent achievement of business plans and compliance with statutory and corporate obligations. It is
the ultimate decision-making body for all matters considered material to the Group and operates under defined Terms
of Reference. The Board is also responsible for laying down strategic directions of the Group and overseeing their
implementation by Senior Management, reviewing the operational and financial performance, and providing oversight to
ensure that effective systems of risk management and internal control of the Group are in place. In addition, the Board
also plays a leading role in establishing the Group's culture and behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-taking

and fair treatment of customers.

While the Board delegates the day-to-day operations and administration of the Bank's business to Senior Management,
specific matters are reserved for the Board's consideration and decision under its Terms of Reference including, but
not limited to, the Group's long-term objectives and strategies, annual business plan and budget, capital planning and
management policies, annual and interim financial reporting, major acquisitions and disposals, overall risk management
strategy and framework, and corporate governance matters covering the development, implementation and monitoring of

the corporate governance policies and practices.

Chong Hing Bank Limited



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

as of 27 February 2020

During the year under review, the Board conducted a robust review of the Group's corporate governance framework and
updated its Terms of Reference and other Board Committees’ Terms of Reference to reflect best practices. The Board also
adopted various policies as recommended by the Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee
and reviewed the Bank's compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and the SPMs issued by the HKMA including the

necessary disclosures in its reports to the shareholders of the Bank (the “Shareholders”).

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Bank are separate, with a clear division of responsibilities as set

out in the Board's Terms of Reference.

The Chairman of the Board, who is a Non-executive Director, is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board and for ensuring that decisions of the Board are taken on a sound and well-informed basis and in the best interest

of the Group.

The Chief Executive, who is an Executive Director, is responsible for implementing the strategies and policies as
established by the Board, including all day-to-day operations and administration, within the framework of the Group's

policies, reserved powers and routine reporting requirements.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As of 31 December 2019, the Board was made up of 10 members, comprising two Executive Directors, four Non-executive
Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors. There is a strong independent element on the Board that ensures
the independence and objectivity of the decisions of the Board, as well as the thoroughness and impartiality of the Board's

oversight of the management.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having sound board level experience and a diverse
range of business, banking and professional expertise relevant to the business operations and development of the
Group. Biographies of the Directors, which include relationships with the members of the Board, Senior Management and
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Bank, are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors

and Senior Management” section on pages 6 to 12 of this Annual Report.

The Bank has received from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence.
Following the assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance with the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board confirmed that all Independent Non-executive Directors

continue to be independent.

All Directors are expressly identified by reference to their roles and functions and whether they are Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors in all corporate communications of the Bank that
disclose their names. An updated list of the Directors (including their roles and functions) is available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Bank.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Bank adopts a formal procedure in the selection of new Directors and nomination of retiring Directors for re-election

by the Shareholders at general meetings.

The prospective director will first be assessed by the Nomination Committee, taking into account the balance of skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board. Upon receiving the recommendation from the Nomination Committee,

the proposed appointment will be considered and approved by the Board after due deliberation.

In accordance with the requirement under the Banking Ordinance, approval from the HKMA will be obtained for the

appointment of new Directors.

All new Directors are subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the next AGM. None of the Non-executive Directors of
the Bank were appointed for a specific term; however, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the AGM at
least once every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-

election.

BOARD PROCESS

Board meetings shall be held at least four times a year and no less than once every quarter. Additional Board meetings

will be held as and when warranted.

Notice of meetings will be given to all Directors at least 14 days before each regular meeting to give them an opportunity
to attend. Meeting agenda and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors a week before the intended date of a

Board meeting.

The Board has a standing agenda of items to ensure that matters relating to overall strategies, business plans, interim and
annual results, corporate governance review, risk management and compliance are covered in its meetings at appropriate

intervals.

Apart from those regular financial and business performance reports submitted to the Board for deliberation at the
regular meetings, the Management provides monthly updates to the Board members with information on the Bank's
latest financial performance and any material variance from its annual business plan to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities. Management also submits to the Board members regular reports regarding auditor's and regulators’
findings and recommendations as well as loans and advances to connected parties for regular review and monitoring,

where appropriate.

During the year under review, there were five Board meetings, all of which were convened in accordance with the Articles
of Association and attended by the Directors either in person or through electronic means of communication. In addition
to the formal Board meetings, the Chairman has regular gatherings with Directors, occasionally without the presence of
the Executive Directors and Senior Management, to consider issues in an informal setting. During 2019, a total of 6 Board
lunches and dinners were held, and the Chairman held a meeting that was attended only by Independent Non-executive

Directors.
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During the year under review, the Board also met with the representatives of HKMA to maintain a regular dialogue with
the regulator where HKMA shared with the Board about HKMA's overall supervisory assessment of the Bank and their key

supervisory focuses on the banking industry in general.

All Directors are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials. Where queries are raised by Non-executive
Directors, steps will be taken to respond as promptly and fully as possible. Any concerns raised or dissenting views
expressed by the Directors in respect of any matter discussed at a Board meeting will be reflected clearly in the minutes.
Full minutes are being kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for inspection at any time during office

hours on reasonable notice by any Director.

All Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice for the purpose of discharging their duties at the Bank's

expense.

Non-executive Directors have devoted sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Bank.

The Bank has put in place procedures to deal with Directors’ conflict of interest. Directors are required to declare their
direct/indirect interests, if any, in any proposed transactions to be considered by the Board and, where appropriate, they
should abstain from voting on the proposed transactions and should not be counted in the quorum.

Appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover has been arranged to indemnify the Directors and Officers

against liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured for 2019/2020 was reviewed and

renewed.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance records of individual Directors at the Board, Board Committee meetings and 2019 AGM held in 2019 are as

follows:

Audit

Names of Directors Board Committee

Chairman and Non-executive Director

2019

Number of Meetings Attended/Required Meetings to Attend

Connected

Party

Transactions

Committee

Executive

Committee

Nomination

Committee

Remuneration

Committee

Risk

Committee

Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing 5/5 - - - 1 Lk - "
Executive Directors

Mr ZONG Jianxin 5/5 - - 14115 - - - 7
Mr LAU Wai Man 5/5 - - 15/15 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors

Mr LI Feng 5/5 - - - - - 5/5 1"
Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred 5/5 5/5 Nl - - 4f4 - 7
Ms CHEN Jing 5/5 5/5 - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr CHENG Yuk Wo 5/5 5/5 Nil" - 1" - 5/5 "
Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew 5/5 - Nil - mn A - n
Mr LEE Ka Lun 4/5 5/5 - - - 34 5/5 0n
Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph 5/5 5/5 - - " bl 5/5 17
Note:

(1) During the year, the Connected Party Transactions Committee has, by way of written resolutions, reviewed and recommended to the Board for

approval of various connected transactions of the Group.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board conducted an annual review of its effectiveness by way of an

evaluation survey (the "Survey”) and received responses from all Directors. The scope of the Survey required Directors to

consider the performance and effectiveness of the Board and its Board Committees including the composition, structure,

dynamics, operation and diversity. The overall feedback was positive and encouraging. The evaluation revealed that the

Board and all the Board Committees continue to perform well with a strong composition and operate to a high standard.
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INDUCTION AND ONGOING DEVELOPMENT

The Bank provides each Director with personalized induction, training and development. On appointment, each new
Director receives a comprehensive and tailored induction covering, among others, information about the Group's
operations and business, the roles and responsibilities of the Board and its key Board Committees, the Bank's governance

structure and practices, and the ambit of the internal audit and risk management functions.

On an ongoing basis, all Directors are provided with briefings and trainings in order to keep them continually updated on
the Group's business and the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws, rules and regulations to
ensure the continued enhancement of their knowledge and skills. Such briefings and trainings are provided at the Bank's

expense.

During the year, the Bank organized two “Board Strategy Meetings” and provided a number of trainings and briefings
to the Directors which covered topics such as corporate culture of the Bank, latest governance and regulatory updates
and risk management. Directors also visited the Bank's Shanghai branch and took part in Shanghai Branch's opening

ceremony such that Directors could have an in-depth review of the Bank's business operations.

All Directors are required to provide their training records to the Bank on an annual basis. The training received by the

Directors during the year under review is summarized as follows:

Articles/Seminars/
Conferences relevant to the

Bank’s business and

Names of Directors Regulatory Updates corporate governance

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr ZHANG Zhaoxing v v

Executive Directors
Mr ZONG Jianxin v v
Mr LAU Wai Man v 4

Non-executive Directors

Mr LI Feng v v
Mr CHOW Cheuk Yu Alfred v v
Ms CHEN Jing 4 v

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr CHENG Yuk Wo

Mr MA Chiu Cheung Andrew

Mr LEE Ka Lun

Mr YU Lup Fat Joseph

SNENEENIRN
SRR
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POLICY STATEMENT ON BOARD DIVERSITY

The Bank recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a Board composed of a diverse range of experience, which is an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Bank's strategic objectives and achieving sustainable commercial
success of the Bank.

Board diversity has been considered from various aspects in designing the Board's composition, including gender, age,
cultural and educational background, industry or related experience, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service (the "Diversity Aspects”). All Board members’ appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. During
the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board diversity based on the Diversity Aspects and considered that

it has a balanced diversity. As at 31 December 2019, the composition of the Board was as follows:

No. of Directors

10
40-49 Below 5
9
ED
Below 5
8 Professional
Accountant
5-14
7
6
5
4
3
2
1
0
Designation Gender Age group Banking Ethnicity Professional Length of
Industry or experience service
related (year)
experience,
skills and
knowledge
(year)

The diverse culture helps promote critical thinking and foster constructive debate, thereby enabling the Board to provide
strategic direction to the management and to ensure the decision-making process is fair and balanced. All of these are

essential in achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the Group.

This policy statement is not intended to, and does not, either enlarge or diminish the responsibilities of the Directors under
the Articles of Association and such other relevant laws, rules, regulations, codes, guidelines, practice notes, circulars
and the like. This policy statement is, however, intended to serve as a source of guiding principles for Directors to take
appropriate actions to achieve the aims of board diversity as outlined above. The Board will review and, where appropriate,
revise from time to time this policy statement in light of experience, evolving standards of corporate governance and any

other changing circumstances.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary is responsible
for ensuring the Board policies and procedures are followed and for facilitating information flows and communications

among Directors as well as with Shareholders and Management.

The Company Secretary's biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on
page 12 of this Annual Report. During the year of 2019, the Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours of professional

training to update her skills and knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated its authorities to various committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Connected Party
Transactions Committee, the Executive Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Risk Committee which operate under defined Terms of Reference. Composition and Terms of Reference of the Board
Committees are reviewed and updated regularly by the Board to ensure that they remain appropriate and in line with the

Group's business and changes in governance practices.

Terms of Reference of the respective Board Committees are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Bank.

Each Board Committee has been provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently consists of five members, including three Independent Non-executive Directors and two

Non-executive Directors.

Under its Terms of Reference, the Audit Committee is required, among other things, to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, to review and monitor the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with the applicable
standards, to review any engagement of external auditor for the provision of non-audit services, to review the half-
year and annual reports and accounts before submission to the Board, to receive audit reports and review the external
auditor’'s management letter, to review the HKMA's on-site examination reports and bring major findings to the attention
of the Board, and to assess and consider the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control,

financial reporting and controls, risk management and regulatory compliance.

Five committee meetings were held in 2019 and the attendance records of the Audit Committee members are set out on

page 50 of this Annual Report. The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included:

(i) met with the external auditor and the Bank's senior executives in charge of Finance and Capital Management
function to discuss the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the six months ended 30

June 2019,
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

reviewed and discussed with the external auditor to ensure that the Group's financial statements had been prepared

in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong;

reviewed the re-appointment of the Bank's external auditor, including its independence and objectivity, and the

scope of audit services;

reviewed the audit fees payable to the external auditor and recommended to the Board for approval, and reviewed

the annual non-audit services provided by the external auditor to the Group and the related fees;

reviewed the external auditor’'s audit strategy and plan of the Group for the year of 2019 and the assessment of the

sufficiency of the internal control of the Group for the year of 2018;

reviewed the report for the year 2018 and the report for the six months ended 30 June 2019 issued from the

external auditor to the Audit Committee;

reviewed the internal control issues and the internal audit function of the Group, covering the annual internal audit
plan, revision on the amendment of internal audit procedure, staffing, resources and performance of Internal Audit
Division, audit findings and recommendations raised in the internal audits undertaken, and the implementation
status of related audit recommendations;

approved the internal audit plan for 2019;

approved the revised Internal Audit Policy;

reviewed the amendment on the Bank's procedure for implementing the quarterly regulatory disclosure pursuant to

the Banking (Disclosure) Rules and recommended to the Board for adopting the procedure;

reviewed the Bank's progress for the adoption of HKFRS 9 (Financial Instruments);

reviewed the financial impact of HKFRS 16 (Lease); and

reviewed the structure, scope of work, qualification and experience of employee and employee’s training course

of the Bank's Finance and Capital Management Division, and confirmed that the Bank has sufficient resources in

accounting and financial reporting to deal with the daily work.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 in conjunction

with the Bank's external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with the Management, the Audit Committee was

satisfied that the Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 were prepared in accordance

with applicable accounting standards and fairly present the Group's financial position and results for the year ended 31

December 2019. The Audit Committee therefore recommended the Group’'s financial statements for the year ended 31

December 2019 be approved by the Board.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to the Group's auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for 2019 amounted to:

HK$'000

Audit services and interim review 7,299
Tax service 540
Other service 560

Total 8,399

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS COMMITTEE

The Connected Party Transactions Committee currently consists of five members, including one Non-executive Director,

two Independent Non-executive Directors, the Chief Financial Officer and the Chief Risk Officer of the Bank.

Under its Terms of Reference, the Connected Party Transactions Committee is responsible for reviewing the robustness
of the Bank's control framework to ensure proper compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements, Listing Rules
together with accounting requirements (promulgated in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions) as may be applicable and

approving significant connected transactions.

During the year, no physical committee meeting was held while the Connected Party Transactions Committee, by written
resolutions, reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of various connected transactions between the Group
and the members of EMBFEEHER Q] (Guangzhou Yue Xiu Holdings Limited*), including the granting of credits

and loans and the entering into and the renewal of the tenancy agreements and property management agreements.

for identification purpose only

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee currently consists of eight members, including two Executive Directors and other senior

executives of the Bank.

The Executive Committee exercises its powers, authorities and discretions as delegated by the Board to manage the
day-to-day operations of the Group in accordance with its Terms of Reference and such other policies and directives as
the Board may determine from time to time. The Executive Committee demonstrates its commitment and conviction in
implementation of proper bank culture and values at all level of the Group, sets appropriate “tone from the top” and leads

by example.
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The Executive Committee has established the Asset and Liability Management Committee, the Expenses Control
Committee, the New Product Approval Committee, the Disciplinary Committee, the Information Technology Committee, the
Risk Management Committee and "Project Spring” Steering Committee with defined Terms of Reference that are in line
with best practices. The above specialized sub-committees report directly to the Executive Committee and are responsible
for overseeing assets and liabilities management, expenses control, approval of new products and services, staff
disciplinary-related issues, overall information technology strategy, major risk and compliance issues as well as a specific
project of the Group.

15 Executive Committee meetings were held in 2019 and the attendance records of the Executive Directors are set out on
page 50 of this Annual Report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of four members, including three Independent Non-executive Directors and

one Non-executive Director.
Under its Terms of Reference, the Nomination Committee is responsible for, among others, reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition of the Board and identifying potential candidate

suitably qualified to become director of the Bank.

One committee meeting was held in 2019 and the attendance records of the Nomination Committee members are set out

on page 50 of this Annual Report. The primary duties performed by the Nomination Committee during the year included:

(i) made recommendation to the Board on the extension of the employment contract of Mr Lau Wai Man as Executive

Director and Deputy Chief Executive of the Bank and his retirement age;

(i) made recommendation to the Board on the extension of the employment contract of Mr Fung Siu Ming as Deputy
Chief Executive of the Bank;

(iii)  made recommendation to the Board on the appointments of Deputy Chief Executive, Alternate Chief Executive and
Chief Risk Officer of the Bank;

(iv)  reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and

its committees and made recommendations to the Board;

(v)  reviewed the efficiency and effectiveness of the functioning of the Board and its committees;

(vi)  assessed and confirmed the independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Bank;

(vii)  made recommendation on the nomination of Directors for the Board to recommend to the Shareholders for re-
election at the 2019 AGM; and

(viii) approved the updated Senior Management Succession Policy and reported to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Authority and Responsibility

The Bank has established a Remuneration Committee with specific Terms of Reference to entrust it with the authority
and responsibilities for, among others, making recommendation and reviewing the Remuneration Policy of the Group
by taking into account the pay and conditions across the Group's individual remuneration packages for Directors, Senior
Management and Key Personnel as well as those in positions of significant influence and those having an impact on
the Group's risk profile; ensuring that the remuneration frameworks and decisions shall be developed in a manner that
is in line with the Group's risk appetite, risk culture and long-term interests; ensuring that no individual Director, Chief
Executive or any of their associates will be involved in deciding his/her own remuneration; and assisting the Board in

carrying out the Bank's Corporate Culture-related duties.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of five members, including three Independent Non-executive Directors

and two Non-executive Directors.

Remuneration Structure

The remuneration system of the Group is composed mainly of fixed remuneration (cash-based) with performance based
variable remuneration (discretionary cash bonus and/or other incentives in form of shares (where applicable)) which does
not only conform with the risk appetite, align with the long-term value creation and time horizon of risk of the Group to
grow steadily and prudently by encouraging long-term performance rather than short-term risk taking, but also motivates,
recognizes and rewards both outstanding individual contribution, sound team performance and positive behaviors. The
proportion and amount of fixed and variable remuneration shall vary according to an employee’s seniority, role and

responsibilities within the Group, also the market benchmarking and trend.

Performance Management

The Group uses a Balanced Scorecard (“Scorecard”’) approach to measure and manage performance at the levels of
the Group, business/functional units and individual employees. With reference to corporate goals and objectives at the
beginning of financial year and when necessary, the Remuneration Committee reviews the Key Performance Indicators
("KPIs") and the corresponding target levels of the Group and recommends to the Board for approval. The targets of the
Group will be cascaded down under the Scorecard Framework whereby the performance would be assessed from the

four key dimensions of financial, customer, internal process and people management.

Each dimension of the Scorecard is comprised of a set of KPIs to assess the performance according to the specific
areas of responsibility of the Group, business/functional units and individual employees; both financial and non-financial
performance indicators are required to ensure a balanced evaluation. To ensure independence, financial KPIs should
not be applicable to those risk control unit/personnel whose performance should be evaluated by their performance

objectives and independent of the performance of the business areas which they oversee.

To put the principle of aligning performance and remuneration with risk into practice, on top of the mentioned KPIs, a
Compliance and Risk Control Dimension is in place in the Scorecard to take into account any risk factors, control, ethics
and compliance event, also its severity and impact to be fully reflected on the performance rating of the Group, business/

functional units and individual employees.
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In the respect of risk management, the Bank has developed a complete Risk Appetite Statement and Key Risk Indicators
as the basis for monitoring, assessing and controlling the Group's risk profile. In the Risk Modifier Framework of the
Corporate Scorecard for 2019, seven major areas including credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk,

operational risk, compliance risk and risk culture are taken into account as a Corporate Scorecard Risk Modifier.

The Compliance and Risk Control assessment at individual level covers the employee's compliance, risk control and
ethical standard. This includes, but is not limited to, the performance of the assessed employee in controlling various risks
(e.g. credit, compliance, operations and reputation, etc.), the risk management ratings, compliance reports or audit reports

related to the performance of the assessed employee, verbal or written warnings, etc.

Compliance and Risk Control Modifier can be applied to adjust the annual performance score in response to any relevant
performance. Poor performance can result in a deduction of the total performance score, which in turn affects the

magnitude and amount of variable remuneration.

Since 2018, under the current performance management system, apart from evaluating individuals' KPIs in the Scorecard,
there is a separate assessment of adherence to “Corporate Culture & Values”. The assessment indicators are designed
and matched with reference to the Group's "Management Concepts” and “Enterprise Spirit” and the six Core Competencies
and their related behavioral indicators, so as to ensure employees and appraising managers clearly understand the

required behaviors and attitude to achieve the defined corporate culture and core values of the Group.

The final performance rating of the staff (including the "“Balanced Scorecard” and "Corporate Culture and Values”) will be a

major consideration factor of their salary review and variable remuneration (if applicable).

Award of Variable Remuneration

The Bank's variable remuneration structure consists of discretionary cash bonus and/or other incentives in form of shares

(where applicable).

The size of the overall variable remuneration pool of the Group is determined according to the compliance/risk adjusted
performance of the Group together with the consideration of all necessary factors (including capital position, market and
peers business conditions, market competitiveness, material or potential risks involved in the business, and the extent to
which the risks affect the Group as a whole), as recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval

and is subject to the Board's discretion.

The subsequent allocated quota of variable remuneration to each business/functional unit is based on the overall
performance of the relevant business/functional unit; while the performance assessment of the employees is based on
the final compliance/risk-adjusted performance rating in the individual Scorecards and the Corporate Culture and Values

rating.

Poor performance (either financial or non-financial) will result in a reduction or elimination of discretionary variable
remuneration at any level. Adverse performance in non-financial factors, where appropriate, should override outstanding
financial achievements. The overall performance of a business/functional unit or an individual employee could be
thoroughly assessed (taking into account compliance and risk factors), rather than solely relying on its/his/her financial

performance. This ultimately helps mitigating the Group's risk exposure and aligns with its long-term value creation.
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To ensure independence, the variable remuneration of risk control personnel is determined in accordance with their
performance objectives and commensurate with their key role in the Group. To avoid possible undue influence from
business units, risk control personnel are compensated in a manner that is independent of the performance of the

business unit which they oversee.

Deferral Arrangements

The award of variable remuneration to employee is subject to deferment in such a manner as determined by the
Remuneration Committee. Deferral of the payment of a portion of variable remuneration will allow employees’
performance, including the associated risks, to be observed and validated over a period of time before the payment is
actually made. In general, when the overall level of their variable remuneration exceeds a certain multiple of their fixed

salary or a certain amount, a pre-defined portion is subject to deferment. Deferral period can last for 4 years the longest.

The award of deferred portion is subject to a minimum vesting period and pre-defined vesting conditions as determined
by the Remuneration Committee and communicated to all relevant employees. Deferred portion is awarded in such a
manner so as to align the relevant employees’ variable awards with long-term value creation and the time horizons
of risk. The future performance (both financial and non-financial) of the Group, relevant business/functional units, and
individual employees is taken into consideration when approving the vesting arrangement. In circumstances where it is
later established that any performance measurement for a pre-defined year was based on data that is later proven to
have been manifestly misstated, or it is later established that the relevant employee has committed fraud, malfeasance,
or a violation of internal control policies, any unvested portions of the deferred variable portion (relating to that particular

year in question) should be forgone, either in part or in whole, as determined by the Remuneration Committee.

External Remuneration Consultant

Appointed by the Board, the Remuneration Committee is authorised to obtain professional advice as it deems appropriate

and is responsible for the selection and appointment of consultants to advise it on all aspects of remuneration.

The Group plans to introduce a long-term share incentive scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) into the reward management
system. With the objective to motivate and retain key talents, the Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) as the
professional consultant for the project, to recommend a long-term incentive design framework and to provide the associated

consulting services for the Group's consideration.
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Summary of Work

Four Committee meetings were held in 2019 and the attendance records of the Remuneration Committee members are
set out on page 50 of this Annual Report. The major works performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year

included:

(i) reviewed the salary adjustment proposal for 2019 and the variable remuneration for 2018 for the Executive

Directors, Senior Management and Key Personnel, and recommended to the Board;

(i)  proposed the remuneration packages for a number of Senior Management and Key Personnel, including Deputy
Chief Executive, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Information Officer, Chief Credit Officer and Deputy Head of Mainland

Business Division, and recommended to the Board;

(i)  reviewed the Bank's variable remuneration budget and allocation mechanism proposal for 2019 and recommended
to the Board;

(iv)  reviewed the Bank-level 2017 deferred variable remuneration vesting arrangement and recommended to the Board;

(v)  reviewed the performance indicators of the Corporate Balanced Scorecard of the Bank for 2019 and the estimated
achievement of targets; reviewed the proposal for the 2019 discretionary variable remuneration pool and Mainland

relationship managers’ incentive framework and recommended to the Board;

(vi)  reviewed the Bank-level 2020 annual salary review proposal;

(vii) discussed the proposal of the Share Award Scheme design framework, reviewed the proposed list of eligible

participants and recommended to the Board;

(viii) reviewed the proposal of the 2019 newly established [FFI4L | incentives plan and framework as well as for 2020

and recommended to the Board;

(ix)  received the report on Independent Review of the Group against “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” (“CG-
5") under the SPM issued by the HKMA by Internal Audit Divison; and

(x)  reviewed the progress updates and the implementation of Chong Hing Bank Corporate Culture and reported to the
Board.

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms under employment contracts, if
any, and the recommendations made by the Remuneration Committee. Details of the Directors’ emolument are set out in
note 43 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. According to the module on CG-5 and the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, Senior Management refers to Executive Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives and chief functional
officers; Key Personnel refers to individual positions whose duties or activities involve the assumption of material risk
or the taking on of material exposures on behalf of the Group and Heads of control functions. There are currently 7 and
12 employees categorised as Senior Management and Key Personnel respectively. The aggregate payouts for these
senior executives for 2018 and 2019 are shown in the tables below in accordance with the disclosure requirement under
paragraph 3.2.3 of CG-5 issued by the HKMA on 12 March 2015.
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The remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, which

was entirely paid in cash, is as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended 31 December 2018

Senior Management HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
Fixed remuneration: 30,031 — 38,638 —
- Cash 30,031 — 38,638 —
— Shares and share-linked instrument N/A N/A N/A N/A
— Others N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of beneficiaries 9 — 7 —
Variable remuneration: 7,060 876 8,657 3,633
- Cash 7,026 876 8,657 3,633
— Shares and share-linked instrument N/A N/A N/A N/A
— Others 34 = N/A N/A
Number of beneficiaries 7 4 7 6
- Vested — 3,205 — —
— Unvested = = — —
- Awarded = — — —
— Paid out = = — —
— Reduced through performance adjustments = = — —
Remarks:
1) There was an additional position categorized as Senior Management in 2019. The above disclosed figures for 2019 consist of the remuneration of this
additional position.
2) There was a transition of Deputy Chief Executive ("DCE") and Chief Risk Officer ("CRQ") in the Group in November and May 2019 respectively. The

above disclosed figures for 2019 consist of the total remuneration of the former and current DCEs & CROs of their service tenures.
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Year ended 31 December 2019

Year ended 31 December 2018

Key Personnel HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-deferred Deferred Non-deferred Deferred
Fixed remuneration: 36,834 = 32,078 —
- Cash 36,834 — 32,078 —
— Shares and share-linked instrument N/A N/A N/A N/A
- Others N/A N/A N/A N/A
Number of beneficiaries 13 — 14 —
Variable remuneration: 8,680 1,930 6,855 4,199
- Cash 8,582 1,930 6,855 4,199
— Shares and share-linked instrument N/A N/A N/A N/A
- Others 98 — N/A N/A
Number of beneficiaries 13 5 11 9
- Vested — 3,380 — 300
— Unvested = 655 — —
— Awarded = = — —
— Paid out = = — —

— Reduced through performance adjustments = = — —

Remarks:

The above disclosed figure of Vested Deferred Variable Remuneration for 2019 includes the vested amount of a former Key Personnel who left the Group in
November 2018.

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

Guaranteed Bonus — 750
Number of beneficiaries = 1
Sign-on Awards 720 200
Number of beneficiaries 1 1

Severance Payment/Long Service Payment — —

Number of beneficiaries = —

The Remuneration Committee will continue to review and enhance the Group's Remuneration Policy in accordance with
the principles and spirit of CG-1 and CG-5, with particular attention paid to risk adjustments to performance assessment;
also alongside with the development of labor market, especially in the development of financial services sector, to
evaluate and refine the remuneration provision of the Group so as to ensure that the rewards are competitive for the
retention of talents.
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RISK COMMITTEE
The Risk Committee currently consists of four members, including three Independent Non-executive Directors and one

Non-executive Director.

Under its Terms of Reference, the Risk Committee is required, among other things, to advise the Board on the overall risk
appetite/tolerance and risk management strategies of the Group, and to oversee senior management's implementation of
those strategies that are established and approved by the Board and aligned with the Bank's overall business objectives.
In performing its role, the Risk Committee is supported by the Bank's Risk Management Committee and its specialized

sub-committees.

Five committee meetings were held in 2019 and the attendance records of the Risk Committee members are set out on

page 50 of this Annual Report. The major duties performed by the Risk Committee during the year included:

(i) reviewed the overall risk management strategies and risk appetite/tolerance statement(s) of the Group and made

recommendation to the Board for approval, and received regularly the risk level rating for each risk type;

(i)  reviewed and assessed regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk management framework,
internal control systems and risk management policies, procedures and systems, and monitored their effective

operation, implementation and maintenance;

(i) monitored the implementation progress of the risk management module under the substantial upgrade of the

Bank's information technology system;

(iv)  monitored the implementation progress of the rectification measures taken by the Bank in response to the findings
of the thematic examinations or meetings on risk-related matters conducted by the HKMA and China Banking and

Insurance Regulatory Commission;
(v)  reviewed and discussed the independent auditor’s report of “Commercial Credit Risk Management” of the Bank;
(vi)  reviewed the governance structure of the Bank;

(vii) approved the Compliance Policy and the quarterly report of the stress-testing, and reviewed the Capital Management
Policy, the Recovery Plan, the Dividend Policy and the internal capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) of the

Bank and made recommendation for the Board's approval;
(viii) reviewed the process updates of the risk culture related programmes of the Bank;

(ix)  provided oversight on the independence of staff members responsible for implementing risk management systems

and controls;
(x)  reported significant risk management issues to the Board as set out in its Terms of Reference; and
(xi)  reviewed and updated its Terms of Reference.

During the year under review, the Risk Committee held meeting with the Bank's Chief Risk Officer without the Executive

Directors present.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance,
financial results and prospects to Shareholders and other stakeholders in a timely manner. The annual and interim
results and other discloseable financial information of the Bank are published in accordance with the requirements of the

Listing Rules and other applicable regulations and industry best practice.

Management provides the Board with sufficient explanation and information to enable it to make an informed assessment

of the Group's financial and other information put before it for approval.

The Directors also receive monthly financial and business updates with information on the Bank's latest financial
performance and any material variance from its annual business plan to enable them to discharge their duties and

responsibilities.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Bank's consolidated financial statements and ensuring
that the preparation of the Bank's consolidated financial statements is in accordance with the relevant requirements and
applicable standards. As at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Bank's external auditor concerning its reporting responsibilities on the Bank's consolidated financial
statements and the key audit matters identified in its audit are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 69

to 73 of this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Group's risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. Although such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss,
the Bank is committed to establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal control

systems so as to safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Bank's assets.

The Bank's risk governance framework is substantiated by the clearly defined three lines of defence which are
independent from each other. In short, the first line of defence is provided by the business units where risks are taken.
The second line of defence is provided by the risk management and compliance functions that are responsible for
overseeing the Bank's risk-taking activities and ensuring compliance with laws and regulations. The third line of defence
is provided by the Internal Audit Division which is responsible for providing assurance on the effectiveness of the Bank's

risk management framework.

Chong Hing Bank Limited



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

as of 27 February 2020

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group comprise comprehensive policies and standards under a

well-established organisational structure:

— Policies and procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for
maintaining proper accounting records; for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication; and for ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Systems and procedures
are also in place to identify, evaluate, manage and report on the major types of risks, including credit, liquidity,
market, operational, legal and reputational risks. All these policies and systems are regularly reviewed to reflect

changes in markets, products and best practices.

—  Areas of responsibilities of each business/functional unit are clearly defined to ensure effective checks and
balances. Each unit is responsible for the assessment of individual types of risks arising under its areas of
responsibilities, the management of the risks in accordance with the established risk management procedures, and

the reporting on such risk management issues.

—  Specialised committees are established for the oversight and monitoring of major risk areas. Regular risk
management reports prepared by relevant business and functional units are submitted to the Asset and Liability
Management Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Executive Committee and the Risk Committee, and
ultimately to the Board for oversight and monitoring of the respective types of risks on an ongoing basis. The Bank's
risk management policies and major control limits are reviewed and recommended by the relevant specialised
committees to the Board for approval, and are monitored and reviewed regularly according to established policies

and procedures.

—  The Internal Audit Division's role as the third line of defence is independent of the first and second lines of defence,
with the Bank's Chief Auditor reporting directly to the Audit Committee. Pursuant to a risk-based approach, the
Internal Audit Division conducts independent and objective assessment of the design and implementation of the
risk management and control mechanisms of the Bank's business and functional units in order to identify any

inadequacy. Results of audit work are reported regularly to the Audit Committee.

—  The Bank has established a whistleblowing policy which encourages employees to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Bank. The Bank treats all information received

confidentially and protects the identity and the interests of all whistleblowers.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee, monitored the performance of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and also completed the 2019 annual review of their
effectiveness, which covered such material aspects as financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board has
received a confirmation from management on the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems and is satisfied that such systems, including the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions, are effective and

adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

The Bank recognizes the importance of communication and undertakes to maintain an ongoing dialogue with the
Shareholders through general meetings, press releases, announcements and corporate communications such as annual
report, interim report and circulars. The Board is committed to the timely disclosure of information. The latest information
regarding the Bank's activities, announcements, circulars, press releases and corporate communications is made
available on the Bank's website at www.chbank.com in a timely manner. The Shareholders’ calendar containing important

dates for Shareholders is set out on page 14 of this Annual Report for the Shareholders’ reference.

A Shareholders’ Communication Policy was adopted by the Board and such policy will be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness. Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the Chief Financial Officer by post to the Bank's registered office at Ground Floor, Chong Hing

Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or by email to info@chbank.com.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The Bank aims at maintaining an ongoing dialogue with the Shareholders and, in particular, using AGMs or other general
meetings as a forum for effective communication with the Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board and Chairmen of the
Board Committees are available to answer questions from the Shareholders in relation to the performance of the Bank at
the AGMs. In addition, the external auditor of the Bank is invited to attend the AGMs to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and the auditor's independence.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the election and re-election (as

the case may be) of individual Directors.

The Bank held its 2019 AGM on 17 May 2019. Poll results in respect of the resolutions proposed at the 2019 AGM were

published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Bank on the same day.

The 2020 AGM will be held on 15 May 2020, and the relevant details are set out in the circular to the Shareholders sent
together with this Annual Report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has established a comprehensive Dividend Policy for the purpose of ensuring the dividend distributions of the
Bank are conducted in accordance with the Articles of Association, applicable laws and regulations and also meet the
expectation of relevant regulatory bodies. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed regularly in accordance with changes in
regulatory requirements, economic and commercial environment. The Bank is dedicated to striking the right balance

between reinvesting capital in the Bank's operations and providing returns to Shareholders.
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VOTING PROCEDURES AT GENERAL MEETINGS

All resolutions put to vote at the general meetings of the Bank (other than on procedural and administrative matters) must

be taken by poll. At each general meeting, an explanation of the detailed procedures of conducting a poll will be provided

to the Shareholders, and questions from the Shareholders regarding voting by poll will also be answered to ensure that

Shareholders are familiar with such procedures. The poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and

the Bank on the same day following the general meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

1.

General Meeting

Shareholder(s) may request to call a general meeting. If such request is made by Shareholder(s) representing 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings, such general meeting must
be called. Such request, either in hard copy form or in electronic form and being authenticated by the person or
persons making it, must be deposited at the registered office of the Bank at Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre,
24 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or sent by email to info@chbank.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary. Shareholder(s) shall make reference to the provisions under Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies

Ordinance for requesting to call a general meeting.

Putting Forward a Resolution at an Annual General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, a request to put forward a resolution which may properly be
moved at an AGM may be submitted by Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
the Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the request relates, or by at least
50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the request relates. Such request
must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given, be either in hard copy form or in electronic form, be
authenticated by the person or persons making it, and be received by the Bank not later than six weeks before the
AGM to which the request relates or, if later, the time at which notice is given of that AGM. The request must be
deposited at the registered office of the Bank at Ground Floor, Chong Hing Bank Centre, 24 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong or sent by email to info@chbank.com for the attention of the Company Secretary. Shareholder(s) should
make reference to Sections 580 and 615 of the Companies Ordinance for the relevant procedures to put forward a

resolution at an AGM.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

Shareholders can propose a person (other than a retiring Director or himself/herself) for election as a director at a

general meeting of the Bank. Relevant procedures are available on the Bank's website at www.chbank.com.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Bank has put in place a Disclosure Policy for the disclosure of material information (including inside information)
relating to its businesses, state of affairs, profit or loss and capital adequacy ratio to its stakeholders and the public
in compliance with the disclosure obligations required by the Listing Rules, the Banking Ordinance, the Securities and

Futures Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Disclosure Policy sets out the procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of such information
in a timely manner so as to enable the stakeholders and the public to appraise the latest position of the Group. The

Disclosure Policy and its effectiveness are subject to review on a regular basis according to the established procedures.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no change was made to the Articles of Association of the Bank, the latest

version of which is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Bank.

By Order of the Board

Lai Wing Nga

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 27 February 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Chong Hing Bank Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chong Hing Bank Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on
pages 76 to 231, which comprise:

| the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

| the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

| the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

| the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

| the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

| the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

| Measurement of impairment allowances of advances to customers.
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Nature of the Key Audit Matter

Measurement of impairment allowances of advances to
customers

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded gross advances to
customers of HK$118,079 million and impairment allowances
of HK$619 million, with HK$426 million as stage 1 and stage
2 impairment allowances and HK$193 million as stage 3
impairment allowances.

This is the second year of the implementation of HKFRS 9
which is considered as a highly complex process and requires
considerable management judgements and interpretation.
The Group uses expected credit losses ("ECL") models for
estimating impairment allowances on advances to customers
which is considered to be material to the Group's consolidated
financial statements. Governance processes and controls are
also in place for the measurement of impairment allowances of
advances to customers.

Our audit focused on key management judgements used in the
ECL models, including the following:

| Criteria for determining whether or not there was
a significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred;

| Management overlay adjustments due to uncertain
factors or data limitations not covered in the models;

| Selection of economic indicators for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic scenarios
and respective probability weightings; and

| The estimated future cash flows for corporate loans and
advances in stage 3.

The impairment allowances of advances to customers are
detailed in notes 7, 14 and 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We performed the following procedures:

| Obtained an understanding of the end-to-end process and
relevant internal controls through walk-through meetings
with key departments and performed testing on key
controls including review and approval of ECL results and
management assumptions by the ECL committee;

| Assessed the appropriateness of the management's
identification of significant increase in credit risk, defaults
and credit-impaired loans by considering financial
information and non-financial information of the borrowers,
relevant external evidence and other factors of the selected
samples;

| Assessed major modelling methodologies and assumptions
including the reasonableness of portfolio segmentation
and use of statistical methods with the assistance of our
modelling specialists;

| Validated the model logics of the calculation engine by
recalculation;

| Tested the accuracy and completeness of key ECL model
data inputs through testing the relevant key data input
controls, tracing a sample population of key data to their
source documents and data records maintained in various
systems involved in the ECL computation;

| Assessed management’s analysis of their selection
of economic indicators and economic scenarios, and
performed an assessment of their sensitivity analysis of
probability weightings;

| Assessed the reasonableness in selecting uncertain factors
and the analysis of data limitations, as well as challenged
their application and measurement in the management
overlay adjustments;

| Discussed the reasonableness of the ECL results with
management and the Audit Committee; and

| Evaluated, on a sample basis, the level of stage 3
impairment allowances recorded for specific loans by
challenging management on the judgements applied in the
expected future cash flows estimation and re-performing
the mathematical accuracy of management's discounted
cash flow calculation.

Based on the procedures we performed, the key management
judgements and assumptions used in the ECL models were
considered acceptable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon),
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s report, and the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information and
the Regulatory Disclosure for the year ended 31 December 2019, which are expected to be made available to us after that
date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information and the Regulatory Disclosure for the year ended 31
December 2019, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

| |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

| Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

| Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

| Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

| Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solel